
( 1974 - April 
1. April 8, 1974 - Pres. Nixon - Signs into law: 

A) Minimum Wage raised to $2.30 per hour. 

( 

( 



( 1974 - July 

( 
\ 

1. July 9, 1974 - Age 83 - Retired, Supreme Court 

Justice, Earl Warren: 

A) Dies. 



( 1975 

( 

1. New York City - Almost goes bankrupt. 

2. U.S. Civil Service - Ends it's ban on hiring 
homosexuals. 

3. Gay Pride Marches - Held in several cities: 
A) 500,000 participate! 

4. U.S. Military Academies - Admit Women for the 
1st time: 
A) West Point ••••• 118. 
B) Annapolis ••••• 81. 
C) Air Force Academy ••••• 157. 



( 

( 

( 

1975 - January 
1. January 5, 1975 - President Gerald Ford: 

A) Appoints a Panel. 

B) Headed by Vice President, Nelson 

Rockefeller. 

C) To investigate charges of Domestic Spying by 

the C.I.A.!!! 
I. When finished ••• Charges are true! 



( 1975 - February 

( 

1. February 27, 1975 - Revealed - Former Director 
of the F.B.I., J. Edgar Hoover: 

A) Kept secret files on: 

I. Presidents. 

II. Congressmen. 
III. Government Officials. 



( 

( 
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May 12-15, 1975 
The "Mayaguez" Incident 

1. The "Mayaguez": 
A) Merchant Marine ship. 
B) 31 years old. 
C) 486 feet long. 
D) 10,766 tons. 
E) Captain ••• Charles Miller ••• Fountain Valley, 

California. 
F) Crew ••• 38 men. 
G) Are out of Hong Kong. 
H) Headed for Sattahip, Thailand. 
I) Cruising in the Gulf of Siam ••• 60 miles off the 

coast of Cambodia. 

2. Monday ••• May 12, 1975 ••• 2:19 ••• Afternoon: 
A) 2 Khmer Rouge gunboats approach t~e 

ship. 
B) Fire machine guns and rockets across the 

bow of the ship. 
C) Ship gets off a radio message. 
D) Is boarded. 
E) Is forced to follow the gunboats. 

3. President Gerald Ford is informed: 
A) Calls it "an act of piracy!" 
B) Meets with the National Security Council. 
C) Decide on a rescue mission: 



( 
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I. 4 Navy ships ••• Air Force ••• and Marines will 
be used. 

D) Plan: 
I. Bomb the mainland. 
II. Land the Marines on the island where the 

crew is held and rescue them. 
III. More Marines will board, take, and sail 

the "Mayaguez" away! 

4. Tuesday ••• May 13, 1975: 
A) Cambodian sailors board the ship. 
B) Crew is removed by fishing boats to the 

island of Koh Tang: 
I. Island is 3 miles by 2 miles in size. 

5. Wednesday ••• May 14, 1975: 
A) In fishing boats ••• Crew are being 

transported to another island. 
B) U.S. jets strafe in front of and around the 

boats trying to get them to turn around. 
C) Armed Cambodian guards will not let the 

fishermen turn back! 
D) The jets drop tear gas on the boats. 
E) The boats reach the island. 
F) The attack HAS prevented the crew from 

being taken to the mainland! 
G) The jets sink 5 gunboats and hit 2 others. 



( 
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H) American planes from the Philippines 
locate the "Mayaguez" Off the island of Koh 
Tang. 

6. Thursday ••• May 15, 1975: 

A) Destroyer "Holt" reaches the "Mayaguez": 
I. Marines board her ••• Empty! 

B) Eight "~olly Green Giant" helicopters 
carrying 210 Marines fly to Koh Tang: 
I. Escorted by fighter jets. 

C) The Marines meet strong resistance from a 
250 man Cambodian force: 
I. 3 of the American helicopters are shot 

down. 
II. Marines land ••• Furious fight. 
III. Establish a beachhead. 

D) The American aircraft carrier "Coral Sea" 
launches air strikes against the mainland: 

I. Hit the Ream Airfield destroying 17 
Cambodian aircraft. 

II. Hit the oil supply depot at Kompong Son. 
E) Cambodians release the crew: 

I. Are picked up by the destroyer "Wilson." 
F) Dark ••• Air strikes and covering fire from 2 

destroyers allows the Marines to be 
evacuated by helicopters. 

( 7. Summary: 



A) Ship has been held for 65 hours. 
B) Crew is retrieved safely. 
C) 41 Americans have been killed and 62 

wounded: 
I. None of the dead are retrieved 

immediately. 



( 

1975 - June 
1. June 6, 1975 - Unemployment: 

A) Reaches 9.2%!! 
I. Highest since 1941. 

2. June 24, 1975 - New York's JFK International 
Airport: 

A) Thunderstorm. 
B) Eastern Airlines, Boeing 727, is landing. 

C) Crashes. 

D) 113 killed. 



( 
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dune 26, 1975 
Murder at Pine Ridge 

1 • .January to .July 1975 - South Dakota: 
A) Pine Ridge Indian Reservation. 
B) 8 murders and 67 assaults. 

2. The .Jumping Bull Compound and Property - On the 
Pine Ridge Reservation - Near the town of Ogalala: 

A) 5 shack houses where members of A.I.M. live. 
I 

B) 2 White men have filed a complaint: 
I. 23 year old, .Jerry Schwarting & 14 year old, 

Robert Dunsmore: 
(1) Have been held at .Jumping Bull Compound at 

rifle point overnight and robbed. 
(2) Released unharmed. 
(3) Give descriptions and names they know to the 

F.B.I. 

3 • .June 26, 1975 - Two F.B.I. agents arrive at the 
compound to serve arrest warrants on 3 of the 
Indians for •••• Kidnapping and assault with a deadly . 

weapon: 
A) Agents: 

I. 28 year old, .Jack Coler. 
II. 28 year old, Ronald Williams: 

(1) One of the Agents caught paying off witnesses 
C in the Banks.and Means trials! 



( B) Gunfire erupts - Both Agents are hit - One makes it 
back to the car - Radio call: 

I. "We've been hit. We're under fire!" 
C) Officers arrive: 

I. 7 hour shootout against 16 Indians. 
II. Indians get away. 

D) Ends: 
I. Agents find the body of 23 year old, Indian, ~oseph 

Stuntz: 
(1) He is wearing Coler's jacket. 

II. Search. 
III. Find bodies of the 2 Agents: 

(1) Stripped to the waist. 
(2) Stripped of weapons. 
(3) Coler's credentials are gone. 
(4) Both have been dragged to the spot and 

executed with multiple gunshots! 
E) Later •••• Leonard Peltier, A.I.M. member, is arrested 

and charged with the murders: 
I. Tried ••• Guilty ••• Life. 



( 
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1975 - July 
1. July 1, 1975 - Major General Lewis Wilson Jr.-

26th Commandant - U.S.M.C.: 

A) Born - 2/11/1920 - Brandon, Mississippi. 

B) WW II: 
I. Guadalcanal. 

II. Bougainville. 

III. Guam ••• Congressional Medal of Honor. 

C) Korean War. 

2. July 30, 1975 - Suburbs of Detroit, Michigan: 

A) Teamsters Union Leader, Jimmy Hoffa: 

I. Disappears. 



( 1975 - September 

( 

( 

1. September 5, 1975 - Sacramento, California -
President Gerald Ford: 
A) On way to address California Legislature. 
B) 26 year old, Former Manson Family Member, 

Lynette "Squeaky" Fromme. 
C) 2 feet from Ford. 
D) Colt, .45, Semi-Automatic, Pistol. 
E) Squeezes trigger ••• Has forgotten to chamber 

a round! 
F) Gun is grabbed by ••• Secret Service Agent, 

Larry Buendorf. 
G) 1st Female - Attempt to assassinate a 

President. 

2. September 6 & 7, 1975 - Louisville, Kentucky -
Riots: 

A) Over court ordered Busing. 
B) 100's arrested. 

3. September 15, 1975 - Elizabeth Ann Seton -
Canonized: 
A) 1 st American Saint! 

4. September 22, 1975 - President Gerald Ford: 
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A) San Francisco, California. 

B) 3:29 - Afternoon - Emerges from Hotel. 
C) Steps to door of Limo. 

D) Across the street - 45 year old, Sara Jane 

"Sally" Moore: 
I. Raises a Nickel-Plated, .38, aims at Ford. 

E) Starts to squeeze the trigger. 

F) Disabled, Vietnam Vet, Oliver Sipple - Grabs 

her arm and yells "Gun!" 
G) Shot goes wild. 

H) Easily subdued. 



( 
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November 1975 
The Kennedy-Campbell Affair 

1. November 1975 ..... udith Campbell testifies 
before The Select Committee on Intelligence 
Operations: 
A) She reveals a 2 year sexual relationship 

between herself and "FK!! 

2. February 1960 ••• Las Vegas, Nevada ••• She is 1st 

introduced to .. FK by her sometimes lover, 
Frank Sinatra: 
A) At this time he is a Senator from 

Massachusetts: 
I. They start what will be a VERY heavy 2 

year affair!!! 
(1) Meet in Chicago, Illinois. 
(2) Meet in Los Angeles, California. 
(3) Meet in Palm Beach, Florida. 
(4) Meet in Washington, D.C. 

3. At the same time she is having an affair with 
Kennedy, she is also having an affair with 
mobster, Sam Giancana!! 

4. She gives intimate and inside details: 
A) She has "screwed" him in the White House 

at least 20 times when .. ackie wasn't 

around! 



( 
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B) He liked to "be on the bottom" because of 
his bad back! 

C) He wants her to do a "Three Way" with 
another woman: 

I. She refuses! 
D) On at least 20 occasions she has carried 

money and messages back and forth 
between dFK and Giancanal 
I. One of the messages was a detailed plot 

to kill Castro. 
E) Kennedy fully participates in the C.I.A. 

involvement with the Mob! 

5. What happens to end the affair?? 
A) F.B.I. Director, d. Edgar Hoover, intercepts 

most of the phone calls between the 2 of 
them: 

I. He knows of the affairl 
II. He warns dFK about her relationships 

with Giancana and dohnny Roselli!! 
III. He warns Kennedy it could ruin his 

political career! 

6. Very late 1962 ••• Kennedy ends the affair: 
A) She is pregnant with his baby at the time: 

I. danuary 1963 ••• 10 months before he is 
assassinated ••• She gets an abortion. 



( 
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7. September 24, 1999 ••• She dies from breast 
cancer. 



( 1975 - November 
1. November 2, 1975 - President Gerald Ford: 

A) Fires - C.I.A. Director, William Colby: 

I. For Domestic Espionage. 

( 

( 
" 



( November 10, 1975 
The Wreck of the 

"Edmund Fitzgerald" 

1. Lake Superior: 
A) Largest of the Great Lakes. 
B) Chippewa Indians called it "Gitche Gumee": 

I. Say the Lake never gives up her deadl 
C) Most dangerous time to sail is November: 

I. Gales caused by cold arctic air meeting 
warm autumn weather. 

2. The "Edmund Fitzgerald": 
( A) Ore ship. 

( 

B) Launched in June 1958. 
C) Cost $7 million to build. 
D) 729 feet long. 
E) Is the pride of the Great Lakes. 
F) Captain is 62 year old, Emest McSorley: 

I. Veteran of 44 years of sailing on the Great 
Lakes. 

G) 29 man crew. 

3. Sunday - November 9, 1975 - Leaves Superior, 
Wisconsin: 
A) Loaded with 26,000 tons of Taconite ••••• lron 

Pellets. 



B) Headed for Zug Island on the Detroit River 
near to Cleveland. 

4. Monday - November 10, 1975 - Storm hits 
Lake Superior: 
A) Over 45 knot winds. 
B) Waves over 16 feet. 
C) Waves get bigger. 
D) 30 foot waves start to hit the ship. 
E) 16 miles from Whitefish Bay, Wisconsin: 

I. McSorley wires another ore ship several 
miles behind him: 
a. Has water coming in, BUT, is in no 

immediate danger! 
F) Few minutes later - Ship diappears in 530 

feet of water! 
G) Search for days: 

I. Empty life rafts! 
II. Empty life preservers! 
III. Oil slick! 
IV. NO SURVIVORS, NO BODIESI 

H) Detroit, Michigan - Mariner's Church: 
I. Bell is tolled 29 times for the lost crew. 

5. 1995 - The 200 Pound Ship's Bell is recovered I 



( 
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April 1976 
The West Point Military Academy 

Cheating Scandal 
1. 50 .Juniors are charged with cheating on a 

take home engineering exam: 
A) Violates the honor code. 

2. May 1976 ••• Announced that 70 to 90 more 
cases are being investigated: 
A) End of the month ••• Revealed: 

I. Extensive cheating going on in many 
classes. 

II. Over 200 involved. 

3. Lawyers for the accused claim that over 50% 
of the 873 .Juniors are guilty!! 

4. Facts: 
A) 300 to 400 are involved!! 

5. Results: 
A) 48 of original 50 are expelled. 
B) 49 others are acquitted. 
C) 2 others resign before charges are brought. 

6. Those expelled are allowed to reapply 1 year 

later. 



( 1976 - April 

( 

( 

1. April 28, 1976 - Senate Select Committee - 341 
page report: 
A) Condemns the C.I.A. & F.B.I. for: 

I. Violating the rights of citizens of America. 

B) Proposes: 
I. New checks on domestic intelligence 

activities. 



( 
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duly 15, 1976 
The Chowchilla Kidnapping 

1. duly 15, 1976 ••• Chowchilla, California: 
A) Summer School bus is traveling along road: 

I. On the bus are 19 girls and 7 boys aged 6 
to 14 years. 

B) Bus is stopped by 3 armed men blocking 
the road! 

C) Bus is taken and hidden in a dry creek bed. 
D) The bus driver and the 26 children are 

placed in two vans: 
I. Driven to a rock quarry near Livermore. 
II. Placed in a large, buried, moving van! 

(1) Is 25 feet by 8 feet in size. 
(2) Is well stocked with food, mattresses, 

portable toilets, etc. 
E) Are inside for 16 hours: 

I. Driver and kids dig their way out! 
II. Get help! 

2. 12 days later ••• The 3 kidnappers are caught: 
A) Richard Schoenfield - .lames Schoenfield -

Fred Woods: 
I. Tried ••• Guilty ••• Life!! 



( 1976 - July 
1. July 20, 1976 - Viking 1 - Robot Craft: 

A) 1st successful landing on Mars. 

( 
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.July 29, 1976 
"Son of Sam" 

1. duly 29, 1976 - Bronx, New York: 
A) 1 :00 - Morning. 
B) 18 year old, Donna Lauria, and 19 year old, 

dody Valenti, get out of their car: 
I. Man walks up. 
II. Pulls out a .44 caliber revolver. 
III. Opens fire. 
IV. Kills Lauria and wounds Valenti. 

2. THIS will start a pattern of murder targets: 
A) Young women. 
B) Long hair. 
C) Alone, in cars, or in parked cars with dates. 
D) .44 caliber revolver used! 

3. October 23, 1976 - Queens, New York: 
A) 20 year old, Carl Denaro, and 21 year old, 

Rosemary Keenan, are sitting in a parked 
car: 
I. 3 shots from a .44 caliber revolver. 
II. Through the rear window. 
III. Denaro is wounded ••• Survives. 

4. November 27, 1976 - Queens, New York: 
A) Wee minutes of the morning. 
B) 17 year old, Donna Dimasi, and 18 year old, 



c .Joanne Lomino: 
I. Standing on the porch of the Lomino 

house. 
C) Man walks up: 

I. Opens fire with a .44 caliber revolver. 
D) Lomino: 

I. Hit in the back. 
II. Survives ••• BUT ••• Paralyized from the 

waist down for life! 
E) Dimasi: 

I. Hit in the neck. 
II. Survives ••• BUT ••• Forced to wear a neck 

brace. 

( 5 • .January 29, 1977 - Long Island, New York: 
A) 12:20 - Morning. 
B) 26 year old, Christina Freund, and 30 year 

old, .Johnny Diel, are sitting in a parked car. 
C) 3 shots from a .44 caliber revolver: 

I. Through the passenger side window. 
D) Freund is hit: 

I. Hospital ••• Dies ••• 4 hours later. 

6. March 8, 1977 - Long Island, New York: 
A) 7:35 - Night. 
B) 19 year old, Virginia Voskerichian, is 

walking down the street. 
C) Man walks up: 
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I •• 44 caliber revolver. 
II. Shoots her in the face. 
III. Kills her instantly. 

7. April 17, 1977 - Bronx, New York: 
A) 3:10 - Morning. 
B) 18 year old, Valentina Suriani, and 20 year 

old, Alexander Esau, are sitting in a parked 
car. 

C) 4 shots into the car: 
I •• 44 caliber revolver. 

D) Esau: 
I. Hit twice. 
II. Killed. 

E) Suriani: 
I. Hit once. 
II. Killed. 

F) Note is left: 
I. Signed: "Son of Sam." 

8. Many notes and letters will be sent to the 
Police and the Newspapers: 
A) Are signed: "Son of Sam" or "Sam's 

Creation." 

9. dune 26, 1977 - Queens, New York: 
A) 3:20 - Morning. 

\ B) 17 year old, dudy Placido, and 20 year old, 
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Sal Lupo, are sitting in a parked Coup de 
Ville Cadillac. 

C) 4 shots are fired into the car: 
I. Passenger side window. 
II •• 44 caliber revolver. 

D) Both are wounded. 

10. July 31, 1977 - Brooklyn, New York: 
A) 20 year old, Stacy Moskowitz, and 20 year 

old, Robert Violante are sitting in a parked 
car. 

B) 4 shots into the car: 
I. Passenger side window. 
II •• 44 caliber revolver. 

C) Violante: 
I. Hit in the head ••• Wounded. 
II. Permanently blinded. 

D) Moskowitz: 
I. Hit in the head. 
II. Hospital ••• Dies 38 hours later. 

11. Vicinity of the Moskowitz murder: 
A) Car has been issued a parking ticket: 

I. Night of the murder. 
II. Next to a fire hydrant. 

B) Traced •••••• David Berkowitzllil 

( 12. August 10, 1977 - Yonkers, New York: 



( 

( 

( 

A) Car ••• Parked in front of some apartments. 
B) Detective looks in car: 

I. Map. 
II. Gun butt sticking out from under the 

front seat. 
C) Send for a search warrant: 

I. Wait. 
D) 10:00 - Morning - 24 year old, Yonkers, 

Postal Worker, David Berkowitz, comes out 
of the apartments: 

I. Gets into the car. 
II. 15 Detectives and Policemen surround 

him. 
III. Arrested. 
IV. Berkowitz smiles and says: "Okay, you 

got me. What took you so long?" 
E) Gun in the car ••••• : 

I. Sub-machine gunllil 

13. Berkowitz is taken to the Police Station: 
A) BUT ..... Where is the .44 caliber revolver??? 

14. Detectives go back to the car: 
A) Found in a paper bag in the car!! 

15. Station ••• Berkowitz admits to: 
A). Being "The Son of Sam." 
B) Planning one last massive murder: 
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I. To be that night! 
II. At a Disco!l 
III. With the sub-machine gun!l! 

16. In one year: 
A) He has murdered 6 people: 

I. 5 women and 1 man. 
B) He has wounded 7. 

17. October 1977: 
A) He is found competent to stand trial. 

18. May 8, 1978 - Trial starts: 
A) He pleads guilty. 
B) c:laims ••••• : 

I. He has acted on the orders of a 6,000 
year old demon! 

II. The demon is reincarnated ••• ln his 
neighbor's, Sam C:arr's, black Labrador 
retriever!! 

III. The dog has ordered him to kill over and 
over! 

IV. Thus ••••• We have "The Son of Sam." 

19. ~une 13, 1978: 
A) Panel of 3 ~udges. 
B) Sentence him to over 500 years in prison. 



( 20. Constantly comes up for parole: 

( 
\ 

A) Routinely turned down. 

21. IF ever released: 
A) Will be tried for setting over 2,000 fires he 

has admitted to! 

22. He claims: 
A) Part of a Satanic Cult. 
B) Sam Carr's two sons, dohn and Michael, are 

both members: 
I. Both are now dead! 

C) 5 different people have been involved in the 
murders. 



( 
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August 1976 
The Korean Incident 

1. Korea - Along the 38th Parallel: 
A) 40,000 American troops: 

I. Help defend the demilitarized zone. 
II. With our South Korean allies. 

B) Short distance away ••• North Koreans. 
C) Constantly watch each other. 
D) Trees growing in the neutral area obscure 

the view. 

2. Captain Arthur Bonifas and Lt. Mark Barrett: 
A) Command a work detail of 9 South Koreans: 

I. Purpose ••• Prune the trees. 
B) 8 North Koreans arrive: 

I. Officer asks what is going on. 
II. Are told. 
III. Reply: "OK" and sit down. 

C) Short time later: 
I. Officer tells the work detail to stop! 

D) The American officers refuse! 
E) The North Korean officer sends for help! 
F) North Korean reinforcements arrive in a 

truck: 
I. A North Korean officer yells: "Kill them!" 

G) The 2 American officers are attacked: 
I. Beaten unconscious! 
II. THEN ••• Killed when, their heads are 



( crushed with the blunt end of axes and 
they are stabbed with tent pegs! 

3. Very tense situation! 

4. 3 days later ••• Full scale alert! 
A) 30 Americans go into the zone and village 

of Panmunjom: 
I. Cut down the 40 foot tall, Normandy 

Poplar tree, and two others! 

5. North Korea will eventually admit 
responsibility for the entire incident. 



1976 - September 
1. September 3, 1976 - Viking 3 - Robot Craft: 

A) Lands on Mars. 

B) 1st Color Pictures. 

( 



( 1976 - November 

( 

1. November 2, 1976 - Presidential Election -

Democrat, Jimmy Carter - 39th President. 



( 
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1976/1977 - Winter 
1. Shortage of Natural Gas: 

A) Forces many schools and businesses to close 
for the hard winter. 



( 1977 
1. Elvis Presley - "The King" - Dies. 

2. "Apple" - Offers the 1st Microcomputer for sale. 

( 

( 
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January 17, 1977 
Gary. Gilmore 

1. Gary Gilmore - Spends most of his life in prison - Released 
- Goes to Provo, Utah: 
A) Narcotics and booze!!! 
B) Wants money to buy a pick-up. 

2. July 19, 1976 - Provo, Utah - Pulls into a Sinclair Service 
Station: 
A) The part-time attendant is Max Jensen - Young, 

married, Law student. 
B) Gilmore forces him into the men's restroom. 
C) Forces him to lie face down on the floor. 
D) Shoots him twice in the head with a .22 revolver killing 

him! 
E) Takes money - Leaves. 

3. July 20, 1976 - Provo, Utah - Walks into the Center City 
Motel: 
A) Clerk is 26 year old, Bennie Bushnell- Married. 
B) Wife is in the next room. 
C) Gilmore robs him and then shoots him in the head killing 

him. 
D) Bushnell's wife hears the shots - Walks out - Sees 

Gilmore leaving. 
E) Gilmore accidentally shoots himself in the hand trying to 

get rid of the pistol. 

4. Goes into Hiding - Cousin turns him in - Arrested without a 
struggle. 



( 5. Tried - Sentenced to death for the murders: 
A) "Opts" for the firing squad over hanging. 

6. In prison - Twice tries to commit suicide by taking smuggled 
in drugs: 
A) Fails both times! 

7. November 1976 - Gilmore announces to the world that he 
wants to be executed and that it is his right to die! 

8. January 16, 1977 - Eats his last meal: 
A) Eggs - Potatoes - Hamburger - and 2 mini-bottles of 

bourbon. 

9. January 17, 1977 -Just before 7:00 in the morning­
Warden, Sam Smith tells the 36 year old, Gilmore that it is 
time: 

( A) In a truck he is driven to the old prison cannery 
\ 

building. 
B) Execution is held up for 18 minutes while a last minute 

appeal is heard by the U.S. Supreme Court. 
C) Strapped in an old office chair covered in green 

naugahyde and surrounded by 44 sand bags. 
D) Given a cup of water. 
E) Father Thomas Meerman - Final prayer. 
F) 5 volunteer marksmen - Standing 26 feet from and in 

front of him - Behind a green sailcloth. 
G) 4 of the 5 have live .30 caliber rounds - One has a blank. 
H) 8:04 - Supreme Court turns down the appeal. 
I) Gilmore: "Let's do it!" 
J) Circular white target - Over heart - Black hood over 

head. 
K) Warden - Silent signal- 8:07 - Leader whispers: "One, 

two, three!" - BOOM!! 
L) The four bullets pulverize his heart. 



( 
10. Body is removed for autopsy: 

A) Has donated his eyes and organs to the University of 
Utah Medical Center. 

B) Remains are cremated. 
C) Scattered over a Utah valley from a plane. 

11. 1st man to be executed in the United States since 1967. 



1977 - .January 
1. January 20th 

- Inauguration -
Democrat, Jimmy Carter - 39th 

President: 
A) Is a Christian & Humanitarian. 
B) YET •••• Is all business! 
C) Considered to be "cold": 

I. Nobody in Congress or close to 
him that would "go to the wall" 
for him. 

D) Is a loner. 
E) Is anti-social. 
F) Never "Thanks" anyone. 
G) Alienates almost everybody. 
H) Would, and, did lie many times! 
I) Hated "The Washington Post" 

because: 
I. Ben Bradlee & Bob Woodward 

revealed in the press that the 
C.I.A. had been paying off King 



Hussein of Jordan for years with 
money and "sexual favors." 

2. January 21 st 
- President Carter 

grants an Unconditional Pardon to: 
A) All Vietnam War draft evaders! 



( 
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1977 - July 
1. Pres. Carter tries to raise taxes on businesses: 

A) Congress turns him down! 

I. They CUT taxes! 
II. They ADD tax "loopholes" to the law! 

2. Pres. Carter tries programs of voluntary wage & 

price controls: 
A) Doesn't stop inflation! 

I. Gets worse!! 

3. July 13 & 14, 1977 - New York City - Power 

Blackout: 

A) 3,400 arrested for looting. 
B) Over $135 million in property damage. 

4. July 20, 1977 - Johnstown, Pennsylvania - Flash 

Flood: 

A) Over 80 killed. 

B) $350 million in damage. 

5. July 26, 1977 - Columbia, Tennessee - Fire -

Toxic Smoke: 
A) Goes thru Maury County Jail killing 42!!! 



( 1978 

( 
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1. Pres. Jimmy Carter - Mediates the 1st Peace 
Agreement: 
A) Between Israel and an Arab Nation ••• Egypt. 
B) The Camp David Accords. 
C) Carter's greatest achievement. 

2. Regents of the University of California vs. Allan 
Bakke: 
A) Supreme Court Decision. 
B) Qualifies Affirmative Action: 

I. Cannot discriminate against Whites if they 
are better qualified! 



( 
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1978 
The ABSCAM Scandal 

1. 1978 and 1979 - Washington, D.C.: 
A) Rumor ••• Group of Arab sheiks: 

I. Willing to pay plenty for political 
legislative favors! 

2. Many politicians meet secretly in the BEST 
hotels with the Arab sheiks: 
A) Bribe the politicians with money to: 

I. Help them invest in hotel construction. 
II. Help them in securing casino licenses. 
III. Help them in getting immigration 

permits for Arabs. 

3. The "Arabs" are actually F.B.I. agents: 
A) Sting operation!! 

4. Meetings are taped and videotaped! 

5. February 1980 - Becomes public: 
A) 31 politicians are nailed! 

6. 1980 - 7 Congressmen are indicted on bribery 
and conspiracy charges! 



( 1978 
Ted Kaczynski - "The Unabomber" 

1. From 1978 to 1995: 
A) 16 Mail bombs! 

I. Kills 3 and wounds 23! 
B) Look like parcels: 

I. Explode when opened! 
C) Early targets are: 

I. Professors of Computer Sciences 
II. Professors of Engineering. 
III. Major Airlines Executives. 

D) F.B.I. comes up with: 
I. "Unabomber" ••• Universities 'N Airlines!! 

E) Who ever the individual is: 
I. Hates industry and technology. 

2. 1995 - Mails a 35,000 word "Unabomber 
Manifesto": 
A) Condemnation of modern technology! 
B) Promises to stop IF "The Washington Post" 

and "The New York Times" will print the 
Manifesto: 
I. The F.B.I. convinces the 2 newspapers to 

do so. 

3. Albany, New York - Youth counselor, David 
Kaczynski, reads the Manifesto: 
A) Tells his wife: 
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I. Sounds like his brother, Ted! 

4. 1996 - David Kaczynski contacts the F.B.I.: 
A) Cooperates with them. 

5. Ted Kaczynski: 
A) 52 years old. 
B) Genius. 
C) Has been a Professor of Math at U.C. 

Berkeley. 
D) Lives back in the mountains near Lincoln, 

Montana. 
E) Lives in a rustic cabin with no electricity or 

plumbing. 

6. April 3, 1996 - The Unabomber is arrested:· 
A) Cabin searched: 

I. Find a finished bomb. 
II. Find a "hit list." 

7. Pleads guilty - NO remorse! 

8. 1998 - 4 consecutive life sentences: 
A) Maximum Security Prison at Florence, 

Arizona. 

9. Has taken the F.B.I. 17 years and a cost of $50 
million to catch him: 



A) Longest manhunt in U.S. historyl 
B) Most expensive manhunt in U.S. historyl 
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January 1978 
J errrey Dahmer 

1. Jeffrey Dahmer: 
A) Born - 1960. 
B) Homosexual- Pervert - Serial killer - Necrophiliac 

- Cannibal. 

2. June 1978 - Days after his High School graduation: 
A) Picks up hitchhiker, Steven Hicks. 
B) Takes him home .. 
C) Crushes his skull with a barbell. 
D) Strangles! 
E) Dismembers and buries. 

3. September 15, 1987 - Steven Tuomi - Disappears: 
A) In 1991 - Dahmer confesses to the murder. 

4. January 1988- Milwaukee, Wisconsin - James Doxstator 
disappears: 

A) March 24, 1988 - Richard Guerrero. 
B) March 25, 1988 - Anthony Sears. 
C) June 1990 - Edward Smith. 
D) July 1990 - Raymond Smith. 
E) September 1990 - Ernest Miller and David Thomas. 
F) February 1991 - Curtis Straughter. 
G) April 1991- Errol Lindsey. 
H) May 1991 - Anthony Hughes. 
I) May 1991 - Konerak Sinathasom-Phone. 
J) June 30, 1991- Matt Turner. 
K) July 7, 1991- Jeremiah Weinberger. 
L) July 15, 1991 - Oliver Lacy. 
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M)July 19, 1991 - Joseph Brandehoft. 

5. What has he done? 
A) Murdered 15 in Wisconsin and 2 in Ohio - 17! 
B) Kidnaps. 
C) Drugs. 
D) Rapes. 
E) Kills. 
F) Rapes after dead!!! 
G) Tries to make Zombie Sex Slaves of others by 

drilling holes in skulls and pouring in liquids. Of 
course it kills! 

H) Dismembers. 
I) Eats portions of the body. 
J) Keeps portions for trophies. 
K) Keeps choice cuts in the refrigerator to eat. 
L) Dissolves the rest of the body in a kitchen acid vat. 

6. July 22, 1991 - Night - Young black male, Tracy 
Edwards - Escapes from Dahmer with handcuffs on: 

A) Runs up to a police car and tells them Dahmer said 
he was going to cutout his heart and eat it! 
*** Check out his house! 
*** Stench! 
* * * Dissected remains of 11 victims! 
*** In the bedroom is an altar of candles and 

skulls. 
*** Find a head, some hands, and some fingers 

kept as trophies. 
*** Refrigerator - Tenderized strips of human 

meat ready to eat! 

7. Confesses to 17 murders. 

8. June 1992 - Convicted: 
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A) 1,070 years - Minimum of936 years. 

8. Prison - Kept in isolation - Other prisoners want to "get 
him": 

A) November 28, 1994 ~ Inmate, Christopher Scarver. 
B) Bashes his skull in with an iron bar killing him. 



( 

1978 - June 
1. June 6, 1978 - California Voters pass 

Proposition #13: 

A) Sponsored by Howard Jarvis. 

B) Cuts Property Taxes by 57%. 
C) Worst hit ••• Education. 
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1978 - August 
1. August 17, 1978 - Maxie Anderson, Ben Abruzzo, 

& Larry Newman: 

A) Land ••• Near Paris, France. 
B) 1st Trans-Atlantic Balloon Flight. 
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1978 
The Gallego Murders 

1. Gerald and Charlene Gallego: 
A) 1 st husband and wife serial killers! 
B) Will operate for 26 months ••• 1978 to 1980! 
C) Operate in 3 states! 
D) Kidnap, torture, sexually assault, and 

murder: 
1.9 women. 
II. 1 man. 
III. 1 unborn child. 

(1) Total ••••• 11! 

2. Gerald Gallego: 
A) Born ..... uly 17, 1946. 
B) At age 6 ••• Runs away from home. 
C) Gets involved in burglary. 
D) Father ••• Executed in the Missouri gas 

chamber for murder! 
E) 1959 ••• Sentenced to the California Youth 

Authority: 
I. Lewd and lascivious acts with a 6 year 

old girl! 
F) 1963 ••• Paroled. 
G) He and half-brother, David: 

I. "ail for armed robbery. 
H) 1963 ••• Paroled. 
I) Kicked out of High School: 



( I. Truancy. 
II. Tardiness. 
III. Profanity • 

.J) October 25, 1969 - Vacaville, California: 
I. He and half-brother are arrested for armed 

robbery. 
K) Escapes: 

I. Four days later ••• Captured! 
II. Sentence ••• 5 years to life. 

L) Sent to the California Medical Facility in 
Vacaville: 
I. For treatment of depression! 

M) December 12, 1975 - Paroled. 
N) "ladies Man." 
0) Will have 5 wives ••• BEFORE Charlene! 

I. Beats all five!!! 
II. Abuses them physically, emotionally, and 

financially! 
P) August 1977 - Separates from wife #5. 
Q) Will marry Charlene Williams 2 months 

before his 5 th divorce is final! 

3. Charlene Williams: 
A) Born ••• October 19, 1956: 

I. Stockton, California. 
B) Genius ••• I.Q. of 160 ••• Photographic memory! 
C) Plays the violin. 
D) Leader in school. 
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E) Participates in many extra curricular 
activities. 

F) Starts drugs at age 12! 
G) High School: 

I. Rebellion! 
II. Sex! 
III. Drugs! 
IV. Alcohol! 

H) October 19, 1974 ••• 18th birthday: 
I. Marries a 19 year old soldier. 
II. Shortly after ••• Annulled by his parents. 

I) August 29, 1976 ••• 2 nd marriage: 
I. She and her husband are both HEAVILY 

into drugs! 
.J) May 25, 1977 ••• Divorced! 
K) September 1977 ••• Meets Gerald Gallego. 

4. 1977: 
A) Gerald Gallego is living in an apartment 

with his 14 year old daughter, Krista: 
I. Krista is visited by a 14 year old female 

friend from Chico: 
(1) Gerald molests the friend twice! 

5. Gallegos and Williams: 
A) He is domineering. 
B) He is demanding. 
C) He is critical of her personality. 



( 

( 

D) He is critical of her mannerisms. 
E) Orders her to wear her hair in bangs and 

pigtails. 
F) Makes her wear jeans and t-shirts. 
G) Demands every kind of sexual act 

imaginable from her: 
I. She complies to please him! 

H) He has a constant problem getting an 
erection! 

I) He has sexual fantasies: 
I. Enjoys sharing them with her! 

6. December 1977 - She buys a .25 caliber semi­
automatic pistol. 

7. Summer 1978: 
A) He comes home. 
B) Finds Charlene in bed with another woman! 
C) Goes nuts! 
D) Screaming and cursing! 
E) Beats both of them! 
F) Throws Charlene's lover out! 

8 • .July 17, 1978: 
A) He celebrates his 33rd birthday by 

sodomizing his daughter! 
I. He has been sexually abusing her since 

age 6! 
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B) Same month ••• Charlene becomes pregnant: 
I. He makes her get an abortion I! 

9. September 11, 1978 - He tells Charlene he 
needs other women: 
A) Tells her of a plan: 

I. Charlene will lure girls to their van. 
II. She is to use the story she has "weed." 

B) Find 2 girls: 
I. 17 year old, Rhonda Scheffler. 
II. 16 year old, Kippi Vaught. 

C) They accompany Charlene to the van to get 
the "weed": 
I. He ••• Pistol ••• Forces them inside. 
II. Tapes their hands and feet. 

D) He drives: 
I. Charlene watches them. 

E) Outside of the town of Baxter in the Sierra 
Nevada Mountains: 
I. Unties. 
II. Takes both out. 
III. Grabs a sleeping bag and blanket. 
IV. Takes the 2 girls off into the trees. 
V. Makes Charlene stay with the van. 
VI. Hours go by. 
VII. He sodomizes both. 
VIII. Returns to the van without the girls. 

F) He and Charlene drive back to Sacramento: 
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I. Switch the van for their Oldsmobile car. 
G) Drive back to the 2 girls: 

I. Place them in the back seat. 
H) Drive to a farming area on the other side of 

Sacramento. 
I) He forces the girls out of the car: 

I. Leads them off from the car. 
II. Beats both with a tire iron. 
III. Shoots both in the head. 
IV. Returns to the car. 

d) Gets into the car ••• Looks in the rear view 
mirror: 
I. Sees one of the girls moving. 
II. "Damnit, one of the bitches is still 

wigglingl" 
III. Goes back and shoots her againl 

10. September 1978 - Two days after their 
disappearance - The bodies of the 2 girls are 
found: 

A) Bya farm worker. 
B) Sexually assaultedl 
C) Bludgeonedl 
D) Shot in the back of the head! 

11. September 27, 1978: 
A) Krista Gallego reports Gerald for incestll 

( I. Unlawful intercourse, sodomy, and oral. 



( 12. September 30, 1978: 
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A) Reno, Nevada. 
B) Gerald and Charlene are married: 

I. For him ••• 6 th! 
II. For her ••• 3 rd! 

13. October 9, 1978: 
A) Arrest warrant for Gerald on the incest 

charges is issued. 

14. December 1978: 
A) The two are in Houston, Texas. 
B) Go back to Reno, Nevada. 

15. June 24, 1979: 
A) Reno, Nevada. 
B) Fairgrounds. 
C) Charlene lures 2 young girls to the van: 

I. 14 year old, Brenda Judd. 
II. 13 year old, Sandra Colley. 

D) Gerald ••• Gun ••• Forces both into back: 
I. Face down on mattress. 
II. Ties both up. 

E) Stop by a hardware store: 
I. He buys a hammer and shovel. 

F) Charlene drives. 
G) Gerald crawls in back: 

I. Rapes both during the drive! 



( 

( 
\'-

H) Drive into the Sierra Nevada Mountains: 
I. Gerald takes one at a time off into the 

darkness. 
II. He returns with only the hammer and 

shovel! 

16. September 1979 - The two return to 
Sacramento, California: 

A) Gerald is using the name "Stephen Feil": 
I. They live as Mr. and Mrs. Stephen Feil. 

17. April 24, 1980: 
A) Gerald tells Charlene: "I want a girl!" 
B) Citrus Heights ••• Outside of Sacramento. 
C) Mall. 
D) Charlene ••• Using the "weed" story ••• Lures 2 

young women to the van: 
I. Karen Twiggs. 
II. Stacy Redican. 

E) Gerald ••• Gun ••• Forces in van ••• Ties up. 
F) Charlene drives. 
G) Gerald crawls in back: 

I. Rapes both. 
H) Night - Reno, Nevada: 

I. Stop at a supermarket. 
II. Gerald buys cigarettes and a hammer. 

I) Drive to an area outside Lovelock: 
I. 90 miles from Reno, Nevada. 
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d) Rapes both again: 
I. Takes them into a canyon. 
II. Kills both. 

18. dune 7, 1980: 
A) The two are in Gold Beach, Oregon. 
B) Spot a woman along the road ••• Walking 

home: 
I. 21 year old, Linda Aguilar: 

(1) She is 4 months pregnant with her 2nd 

child. 
C) Offer her a ride: 

I. She gets in. 
D) Gerald ••• Gun ••• Back ••• Ties her up: 

I. Gerald tries to rape her. 
II. Can't ••• No erection. 

E) Stop in a remote area: 
I. Gerald takes her off. 
II. Returns alone. 
III.Telis Charlene he beat her to death with 

a rock and strangled her! 

19. dune 22, 1980: 
A) German tourists find the remains of Linda 

Aguilar: 
I. Head bludgeoned with a rock! 
II. BUT, not dead ••• Has been buried ALIVE! 
III. Has suffocated to death! 



( 20. duly 16 & 17, 1980: 
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A) West Sacramento, California. 
B) The two are in the Sail Inn ••• Drunk: 

I. Gerald plans to celebrate his 34th 

birthday. 
C) 2:00 - Morning - Closing time. 
D) 34 year old, blonde bartender, Linda 

Mochel, mother of two: 
I. Locks up and comes out of the bar. 

E) At gunpoint ••• Gerald forces her into the van: 
I. Back ••• Ties her up. 

F) Drive back to their apartment: 
I. Charlene goes inside. 

G) Gerald rapes and sodomizes Mochel in the 
van. 

H) When finished: 
I. He gets Charlene. 

I) She drives the van: 
I. He crawls in back. 
II. Strangles her to death! 

d) Drive outside of Clarksburg: 
I. He disposes of the body. 

21. duly 27, 1980 - 3 months after their 
disappearance: 

A) People on a picnic. 
B) Find the remains of Twiggs and Redican: 

I. Eaten by coyotes!!! 



( 

( 

II. Raped. 
III. Bludgeoned to death with a hammer! 

22. 1980 - Summer - Gerald and Charlene sell 
the van. 

23. September 1980 - The two are fighting: 
A) Charlene moves back with her parents. 
B) Gerald gets a girlfriend! 

24. October 3, 1980: 
A) Fishermen discover Linda Mochel's body. 

I. Southeastern Yolo County. 

25. October 1980: 
A) Gerald is back in Sacramento, California: 

I. He and Charlene start seeing each other 
again! 

26. By November 1, 1980 - The 2 are back 
together! 

27. Saturday night - November 2, 1980: 
A) Sacramento, California. 
B) Arden Fair Shopping Center. 
C) Wee minutes of November 3rd

• 

D) Two Cal State Sacramento students come 
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out of the restaurant: 
I. 22 year old, Craig Miller. 
II. 21 year old, Mary Beth Sowers. 
III. The two are engaged to be married! 

E) Gerald ••• Gun ••• Forces the two into the 
backseat of the Oldsmobile Cutlass: 
I. A fraternity brother sees them. 
II. Suspicious. 
III. Woman at the wheel, man beside her, 

his two friends in the backseat, car 
speeds away! 

(1) Takes down the license plate number. 
F) Charlene drives to Bass Lake in EI Dorado 

County. 
G) Gerald makes Miller get out: 

I. At point blank ••• shoots him in the back of 
the head killing him! 

II. THEN, straddles him and shoots him 
twice more in the head! 

H) Has Charlene drive him and Sowers to his 
apartment: 

I. Hours of rape and sodomy. 
I) Has Charlene drive them to Placer County: 

I. Gerald ••• Takes her into a field. 
II. Shoots her in the head killing her. 

28. Sunday afternoon - November 3, 1980: 

\. A) 20 miles from Placerville. 



B) Miller's body is discovered: 
I. Shot above the right ear. 
II. Shot in the back of the neck. 
III. Shot in the right cheekbone. 

29. The silver Oldsmobile Cutlass is traced to 
Charlene Williams and her father, Charles 
Williams: 

A) Charlene's parents, Charles and Mercedes, 
are interviewed by detectives: 

I. Admit that "Stephen Feil" is really Gerald 
Gallego!! 

II. Admit their daughter is married to him! 
III. Admit he is wanted on incest and other 

charges! 
IV. Admit they have wired the two $500 in 

Omaha, Nebraska. 

30.The F.B.I. enters the case because: 
A) Gerald and Charlene have driven across 

state lines to avoid capture! 

31. Monday - November 7, 1980: 
A) 11 :30 - Morning. 
B) Omaha, Nebraska. 
C) Captured by the F.B.I.: 

I. She is 7 months pregnant! 



( , 32. Saturday - November 22, 1980: 
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A) 2:50 - Afternoon. 
B) Placer County. 
C) Two young men out target shooting. 
D) Find the decomposed remains of Sowers: 

I. Hands tied behind her back. 
II. Shot 3 times in the head. 

33. November 17, 1981: 
A) 24 year old, Charlene, gives birth to Gerald 

Gallego .Jr. in the prison hospital. 

34. February 1982: 
A) In return for a deal ••• Charlene tells all! 

35. November 10, 1982: 
A) After months of talking and deals: 

I. Between the District Attorneys of 
California, Nevada, and Oregon. 

B) Charlene pleads guilty to 2 counts of 1st 

Degree Murder: 
I. Miller and Sowers. 
II. For her testimony: 

(1) 16 years and 8 months in prison. 
(2) Every bit to be served. 
(3) No parole. 
(4) Time to be served in Nevada. 



( 36. Gerald Gallego represents himself: 
A) November 1982: 

I. Trial starts in California. 
B) .June 21, 1983: 

I. Guilty. 
II. Death sentence for murders of Miller and 

Sowers. 
C) September 1983: 

I. California extradites him to Nevada. 
II. To be tried for the murders of .Judd and 

Colley, whose bodies are never found! 
D) .June 25, 1984: 

I. Nevada ••• Sentenced to death! 

( 37. August 1997 - Charlene is released. 

38. He ••• " in Nevada. 
~J~ - ~fi-fS(:)~ -~ 
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October 6, 1978 
The Hillside Stranglers 

1. 1977 ••• 25 year old, Ken Bianchi, arrives in Los 
Angeles, California: 
A) Lives with his 42 year old cousin, Angelo 

Buono .Jr.: 
I. Buono runs an upholstery business. 

2. October 6, 1978 ••• The 2 men kidnap part-time 
prostitute, Elissa Kastin: 
A) Take her to Buono's house. 
B) The 2 men rape, sodomize, and strangle her 

to deathl 
I. Her nude body is dumped on a Los 

Angeles hiliside ••• Many others will also be 
dumped in the same fashion ••• Thus, 
"H illside Stranglers." 

3. Police know from the seman evidence that 
two men are involved ••• BUT, they don't know 
who: 
A) BUT, they let the press run it as one man ••• 

Thus, originally "The Hillside Strangler"11 
I. The Police do this so as not to alarm and 

-thus catch the two men responsiblel 

4. Buono and Bianchi's process gaining victims: 
( A) Have fake police badges. 



( B) Stop a victim. 
C) Claim to be undercover police officers. 
D) Place the victim to be in their "unmarked 

police car." 
E) Back to Buono's house. 
F) Strip, rape, many are sodomized, strangled 

to death. 
G) Totally clean up to destroy any evidence. 
H) Dump the nude body on a hillside OR, in 

some cases near a police station I 

5. October 18, 1978 ••• 19 year old, Yolanda 
Washington. 

( 6. 2 weeks later ••• 15 year old, .Judith Miller. 

7. November 20, 1978 ••• THREE in one night: 
A) 12 year old, Dolores Cepeda. 
B) 14 year old, Sonja .Johnson. 
C) 20 year old, Kristina Wheeler. 

8. November 23, 1978 ••• 28 year old, .Jane King. 

9. December 17, 1978 ••• Cindy Hudspeth ••• Leave 
her body in the trunk of a car. 

10. The killings suddenly stoplill Why??? 
( A) Bianchi gets tired of Buono's filthy home 
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and habits: 
I. Moves to Bellingham, Washington. 
II. Goes to work as a Security Guard. 

11 • .January 1979 ••• Bodies of Karen Mandic and 
Diane Wilder are found in the back of a car: 

A) Forensic evidence ••• Ken Bianchi!! 
B) Arrested. 
C) Questioned about the Los Angeles murders: 

I. Tries to fool psychiatrist with a split 
personality act: 
(1) Blows it when he fakes being 

hypnotized!!! 
D) Tried ••• Makes a deal ••• ln return for life 

sentence instead of death he will testify 
against Buono!!! 

12. Back to California ••• Buono is arrested: 
A) Tried. 
B) Bianchi tries to back out of testifying 

against him! 
C) Doesn't work! 

13 • .January 9, 1984 ••• Buono is convicted! 

14. The 2 have murdered ten!! 
A) Both ••• life sentences: 

( I. Bianchi ••• Washington. 
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II. Buono ••• California. 

15. September 2002 ••• Calipatria State Prison ••• 
Buono dies of a heart attack. 
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November 18, 1978 
.Jonestown 

1 • .Jim .Jones: 
A) Born ••• 1931 ••• Lynn, Indiana. 
B) Raised a Methodist. 
C) As a boy ••• Powerful and "strange." 
D) Kills his pets ••• Why? 

I. So he can perform religious services at 
their burials! 

E) Methodist Preacher. 
F) Total integrationist. 
G) Becomes disenchanted with the Methodist 

Church: 
I. Quits. 

H) At age 16 ••• Street Preacher. 
I) Decides to start his own church. 

2. 1950 - .Jones visits Father Divine in New 
Orleans: 
A) Old "Mojo Man." 

3 • .Jones forms his own church: 
A) The Peoples Temple: 

I. Appeals to all races. 
II. PRIMARILY composed of blacks and the 

poor. 
B) Following grows tremendously. 



( 4. The Peoples Temple ••• Primary headquarters is 
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in San Francisco, California: 
A) Total obedience to .Jonesl 
B) Is worship by FEARI 
C) Members call .Jones "Father"1 

I. Makes himself out to be a "God"l 
II. Becomes a self-appointed Messiahl 
III. Claims to have visions of a socialist 

paradise on earthl 
IV. He craves total domination over his 

fellow manl 
V. Makes his followers into "slaves." 

D) Members turn over all property and money 
to .Jonesl 

I • .Jones stashes large amounts of money in 
Swiss banksl 

II. Church becomes a money machine with 
millions of dollarsl 

E) .Jones is a "Religious Showman": 
I. Stages fake "faith healings"l 
II. Fakes communicating with the deadl 
III. Fakes "raising the dead" with magic 

potionsl 
F) .Jones is actually a deranged con man and 

liar: 
I. Tells his followers of death threats 

against himself ••• ALL LIES!I 
II. Becomes so deranged that he starts 
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believing his own bunk!! 
G) What actually goes on in the Church?? 

I. Beatingsl 
II. Siaveryl 
III. Blackmaill 
IV. Sexual abuse!!1 

(1) .lones is bisexual!! 
(2) Required of any and all women to 

have sex with .Iones if he desiresl 
V. Child abusel 
VI. "Disappearances" ••••• Deaths? 

H) Regular practice or "trial runs" of 
committing mass suicide: 

I • .Iones calls it "White Nightl" 

5. 1963 - .Iones visits Guyana in South America: 
A) Why? 

I. It is supposed to be one of the safest 
places on the earth if there is a nuclear 
warl 

II. He claims he has constant visions of a 
coming nuclear holocaustl 

6 • .Iones starts becoming very depressed: 
A) Mentally he starts "coming apart." 
B) Feels hopelessness. 
C) Feels that all he has created is about to 

perish. 
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7. Moves the church to Guyana: 
A) Most of the followers go with him! 
B) Builds a commune ••••• donestown!!! 

8. donestown: 
A) Practices within the church continue. 
B) dones is raking in $65 thousand per month 

in signed over Social Security checks from 
the elderly! 

C) People are virtually "prisoners"! 
D) dones will not hesitate to order killings to 

maintain control! 
E) dones orders crates of Gideon Bibles to be 

used as toilet paper! 
F) Continues practicing "White Night" about 

every 2 weeks! 

9. 1976 -Investigations into The Peoples Temple 
in Guyana start: 

A) Associated Press Conference: 
I. AP photographer, Sammy Houston, talks 

to AP reporter, Tim Reiterman. 
II. Houston tells Reiterman that his son had 

been a member of The Peoples Temple: 
(1) His son has gone to Guyana. 
(2) His son has written him of beatings, 

abuses, and imprisonment! 



( 

( 

(3) His son has "died" under very 
questionable circumstances! 

10. 1977 - AP reporter, Tim Reiterman, is 
stationed in San Francisco: 

A) He researches The Peoples Temple. 
B) Former members tell him of: 

I. The cruelty of .Jones! 
II. How manipulative .Jones is! 
III. The sexual abuses by.Jones! 

11. November 1977 - Reiterman writes his story 
on The Peoples Temple: 

A) California Representative, Leo Ryan: 
I. An old friend of AP photographer, Sammy 

Houston. 
II. Reads Reiterman's story. 
III. Gets involved. 

12. Ryan and Reiterman organize a group of 
journalists and family members: 

A) Are going to Guyana to visit .Jonestown! 

13. November 1, 1978: 
A) Ryan wires .Jones he is coming to visit! 

14. Ryan's group: 
( A) Leo Ryan. 
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B) Tim Reiterman - "The San Francisco 
Examiner." 

C) Charles Krause - Correspondent for "The 
Washington Post." 

D) Ron .Javers - "The San Francisco 
Chronicle." 

E) Greg Robinson - Photographer for "The San 
Francisco Examiner." 

F) Don Harris - NBC News. 
G) Bob Brown - NBC Cameraman. 
H) .Jackie Speier - Ryan's Legislative Aide. 

15. November 13, 1978: 
A) Ryan's group leaves for .Jonestown. 

16 • .Jones doesn't want the group in .Jonestown: 
A) BUT, he will allow them to enter: 

I. Prepares an elaborate fa~ade of 
tranquility and happiness! 

17. November 17, 1978: 
A) Ryan's group arrives in .Jonestown: 

I. All are introduced to the 47 year old, .Jim 
.Jones: 
(1) Ryan is not impressed with him! 

B) Ryan interviews about 40 people: 
I. He is impressed with the organization and 

community strength. 
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C) Group spends the night. 

18. November 18, 1978: 
A) Ryan's group prepares to leave. 
B) Look at a dormitory: 

I. Resembles "slave quarters"!1! 
C) Don Harris shows dones a note that has 

been smuggled to him: 
I. From members begging for help to leave! 
II. dones says they can leave if they want! 
III. dones claims he is being undermined by 

liars! 
D) Loyal dones follower, Don Sly, threatens 

Ryan with a 5 inch fishing knife: 
I. Sly is physically restrained and led away! 

E) Group starts loading into a trailer pulled by 
a tractor: 
I. To be taken back to the airstrip. 

F) 7 members of the Parks family run up: 
I. Beg to be taken with them. 
II. Are loaded in the trailer. 

G) Member, Larry Layton, comes up: 
I. Asks to join them and leave. 
II. Granted! 
III. BIG MISTAKE: 

(1) He is one of dones' most loyal 
followers! 

(2) He is part of a plan!!! 
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H) 4:30 - Afternoon - Arrive at the airstrip: 
1.2 planes: 

(1) A six seat Cessna. 
(2) 19 seater. 

I) Layton boards the six seat Cessna • 
.. ) Tractor pulling a trailer comes out of the 

jungle and approaches: 
I. Filled with "ones men armed with 

shotguns, semi-automatic pistols and 
rifles. 

II. Open fire! 
III. Layton in the plane, opens fire! 

K) Layton wounds 2 of the defecting members: 
I. Gun jams! 
II. He jumps from the plane and runs! 

L) Patty Parks is shot and killed: 
I. In the door of the 19 seater. 

M) Killed outside the planes are: 
I. Ryan - Brown - Harris - and Robinson. 
II. Killers walk up and shoot each in the 

head "to make sure" they're dead! 
N) The 8 wounded flee into the jungle and 

hide! 
0) The murder squad heads back to 

"onestown! 

19. Back ....... onestown: 

A) 5:00 - Afternoon: 
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I. dones gets on the loudspeaker: 

(1) Calls everybody to the pavilion. 

B) Murder squad from the airstrip arrives: 

I. Leader whispers in .Jones' ear. 
C) dones ••• Loudspeaker: 

I. Tells the people that Ryan is dead! 

II. Tells them: "We must die with dignity!" 

III. Tells them it's time for "White Night"!!!! 
(1) Mass suicide!!!!!!! 

D) Potion is prepared in a tub: 

I. Strawberry flavored drink. 

II. Laced with tranquilizers and cyanide! 

E) .Jones tells them to: 
I. Drink the potion. 

II. Lay down together. 

F) .Jones: "Bring the babies first!" 

I. Many mothers wiliingly ••• Forward ••• Hold 

mouths open ••• Squirted in with syringes! 

II. Many mothers resist ••• Guards take babies 

from them ••• Hold mouths open ••• Squirted 

in!! 

III. Convulsions immediately! 

G) People willfully come forward OR, are 

forced by guards 

I. Take cups. 
II. Drink poison solution. 

III. Lie down together. 

IV. Start dieing. 
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H) dones: "I tried, I tried, I tried. Mother, 
mother!" 

I. Shoots himself in the head committing 
suicide! 

II. 911 ••••• Suicide!!!!! 



1979 
1. Americans are watching television 

shows that deal with large family 
wealth: 

A) "Dallas." 
B) "Dynasty." 

2. The primary business moguls of 
America are: 

A) Donald Trump. 
B) Bill Gates. 
C) Steve Jobs. 
D) Michael Milkin. 
E) Ivan Boesky. 

3. Chrysler Corporation faces 
bankruptcy: 

A) Federal Government bails them 
out: 

I. $1.5 billion loan! 



4. Many Colleges & Universities are 
now offering Asian Studies 
programs. 

5. Affirmative Action has increased 
diversity in schools and other 
institutions. 

6. Charges are brought against 
Carter's White House Chief of Staff, 
Hamilton Jordan: 

A) Used cocaine at Studio 54. 
B) Later •••• May 21, 1980: 

I. Grand Jury decides •••• Not 
enough evidence to prosecute. 



( 1979 - January 
1. January 1, 1979 - U.S. & China: 

A) Officially open Diplomatic Relations. 

( 
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1979 - March 
1. March 28, 1979 - Three Mile Island: 

A) Pennsylvania. 

B) Nuclear Power Plant. 
C) Accident ••• Nuclear Steam is released into the 

Atmosphere. 

D) April 9, 1979 - Under control - Crisis ends. 
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\ 1979 - May 

1. May 25, 1979 - O'Hare Airport - Chicago, Illinois: 

A) DC-10 - Takes off - Crashes immediately. 
B) 273 killed: 

I. Worst air disaster in U.S. history. 

( 



C 1979 - July 

( 

1. July 16, 1979 - Iraq - Saddam Hussein­

Becomes President. 
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1979 
The Atlanta Child Murders 

1. The murders go on for 2 years: 
A) 30 black children will be murdered in that time! 
B) Wayne Williams will eventually be sent to prison as 

the "The Child Murderer", BUT: 
I. He is only convicted of murdering 2 adult ex­

convicts! 
C) Are the child murders still unsolved??? 

2. July 28, 1979 - Afternoon: 
A) Roadside undergrowth - Woman finds 2 corpses: 

I. 14 year old, Edward Smith - Shot with a .22! 
II. 13 year old, Alfred Evans - Strangled. 

3. September 4, 1979 - Bike riding: 
A) 14 year old, Milton Harvey vanishes: 

I. Body is found three weeks later. 

4. October 21, 1979 - Mother sends 9 year old, YusefBell, to 
the store: 

A) Disappears. 
B) November 11, 1979 - Found strangled to death in an 

abandoned school. 

5. March 4, 1980 - 12 year old, Angel Lenair is reported 
missing by her mother: 

A) March 10th 
- Body is found. 

B) Tied to a tree -Hands tied behind her back. 
C) Sexually abused - Strangled - Panties stuffed down 

her throat. 
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6. March 11, 1980 - Errand to the store - Jeffrey Mathis 
vanishes: 
A) Skeletal remains are found 11 months later. 

7. May 18, 1980 -14 year old, Eric Middlebrooks - Doesn't 
come home: 
A) Next day - Found dead - Blow to head. 

8. June 9, 1980 - On way to swimming pool- 12 year old, 
Christopher Richardson - Vanishes. 

9. June 21, 1980 -10 year old, Aaron Wyche - Reported 
missing by family: 
. A) June 24, 1980 - Under a railroad trestle - Body found 

- Neck is broken! 

10. June 22, 1980 - Night before her 7th birthday - Latonya 
Wilson - Abducted from her home: 
A) October 18, 1980 - Remains found. 
B) Brings F.B.I. into the case. 

11. July 6, 1980 - Playing near his home - 9 year old, 
Anthony Carter disappears: 
A) Next day - Found - Dead - Multiple stab wounds. 

12. July 30, 1980 - Public swimming pool- Earl Terrell 
disappears: 
January 9, 1981 - Skeletal remains are found. 

13. August 20, 1980 - 12 year old, Clifford Jones - Taken off 
the streets: 

. A) October 1980 - Body found - Strangled. 
B) 5 witnesses claim his murderer was a white man: 

*** That man is jailed in 1981 for attempted rape and 
sodomy. 
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*** Detectives list Jones' murderer as "unknown"! 
*** Why? 
*** Why do they ignore the sworn statements? 

14. September 14, 1980 -11 year old, Darren Glass­
Vanishes: 
A) Never found! 

15. October 9, 1980 - Charles Stephens - Vanishes: 
A) Next day - Body found - Strangled. 

16. November 1, 1980 - 9 year old, Aaron Jackson­
Disappears: 
A) Next day - Body found - Strangled. 

17. November 10, 1980 - Patrick Rogers -Disappears: 
A) February 1981 - Remains found - Skull crushed! 

18. January 3, 1981 - 14 year old, Lubie Geter - Disappears: 
A) February 5, 1981 - Body found - Strangled! 

19. January 22, 1981 - 15 year old, Terry Pue - Vanishes: 
A) January 23rd 

- Body found - Strangled with rope or 
piece of cord. 

B) Fingerprints are lifted from the corpse: 
*** Not on file with any law enforcement agency. 

20. February 6, 1981 - 12 year old, Patrick Baltazar -
Disappears: 
A) 1 week later - Body found - Strangled with a rope or 

. cord. 

21. February 19,1981-13 year old, Curtis Walker­
Disappears: 
A) Same day - Body found - Strangled! 
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22. March 2, 1981-16 year old, Joseph Bell is found 
strangled! 

23. March 11, 1981- Timothy Hill is found drowned to 
death. 

24. March 30, 1981 - 1st adult victim is found: 
. A) 20 year old, Larry Rogers. 

B) Strangled. 

25. March 31, 1981 - 2nd adult victim is found: 
A) 21 year old, Eddie Duncan. 

26. April 1, 1981- 3rd adult victim - 23 year old, Michael 
McIntosh: 
A) Strangled! 

27. At this point: 
A) UPROAR!!! 
B) More than one murderer??? 
C) Is it the KKK??? 
D) Is it a Satanic Cult??? 

28. April 21, 1981- 21 year old, ex-convict, Jimmy Payne -
Disappears: 
A) April 27th_ Body found - Strangled! 

29. May 11, 1981 - 17 year old, William Barrett -
Disappears: 
A) Next day - Body found - Strangled. 

30. May 22, 1981- Before dawn - Rookie police officer is on 
stakeout on a bridge - Chattahoochee River: 
A) Hears a splash. 
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B) Hears a car. 
C) Alerts fellow officers. 
D) Car is stopped. 

. E) Driven by a 23 year old black man named, Wayne 
Williams. 

F) FBI and local authorities spend 2 hours questioning 
him and searching the car. 

G) Let him go! 

31. May 24, 1981 - Corpse of 27 year old, convicted felon, 
Nathaniel Cater - Fished out of the river. 

32. Authorities start seriously investigating Wayne Williams: 
A) Splash - Car stopped in area - Etc. 

33. June 21, 1981 - Williams is arrested and charged with 
the murder of Cater: 
A) DESPITE the testimony of 4 witnesses who testify to 

seeing Cater AFTER the famous splash! 

34. July 17, 1981 - Williams is indicted for the murders of 2 
adults, Cater and Payne! 

. 35. December 1981 - Trial starts: 
A) Williams is portrayed as a violent, homosexual, killer! 
B) Fibers from the trunk of William's car are "found on 

the bodies" of 6 of the victims: 
*** BUT, he had no access to the car when 3 of the 6 

fiber victims are murdered! 

36. February 27, 1982 -- Guilty - 2 terms of life!!!!! 

37. November 1985 - New evidence: 
A) Classified documents are released. 
B) Informant within the KKK gives information: 



( *** KKK was killing the children!!! 
*** Hope to provoke a race war!!! 
*** Klansman, Charles Sanders, brags about killing 

Lubie Geter!!! 
*** After 20 killings the KKK switched to murdering 

black women: 
(1) 81 black women are killed - Unsolved- Most 

are strangled! 



( 1979 - September 

( 

1. September 6, 1979 - President Jimmy Carter: 
A) Commutes prison sentence of: 

I. Oscar Collazo: 
(1) Has attempted to assassinate Pres. 

Harry Truman. 

2. September 17, 1979 - Cuba: 
A) Frees the last 4 Americans that have been 

held as Political Prisoners. 
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1979 - October 
1. October 1, 1979 - United States officially: 

A) Gives the Panama Canal Zone back to 

Panama. 



1979 - November 
1. November 4, 1979 - Tehran, Iran - U.S. 

Embassy: 

A) Stormed by Iranian Students. 
B) 66 Americans taken as hostages. 



(' 1979 - December 

( 

1. Russia invades Afghanistan: 

A) Pres. Jimmy Carter: 
I. Officially bans U.S. from participating in the 

1980 Summer Olympics: 

(1) To be held in Moscow, Russia. 



( 1980 -

( 

1. 1980 - Population ..2~~ S-/~ 0 70 

2. 1980 - 29 million Americans are below the 
Poverty Line: 

A) The typical, average, poor American of the 
1980's will be: 

I. White & Female. 
II. NOT as most people think, Black & Male. 

3. 1980 - 3.7 million Americans of Asian descent -
Why? 

A) End of the Vietnam War. 
B) The political instability of the Philippines. 
C) Opportunities in America. 

4. 1980 - Rise of a New Conservatism in America: 
A) Called: "The New Right." 
B) Why does it emerge? 

I. Changes in the economy. 
II. The growth of Evangelical Christianity in 

religion. 
III. The growth of a Conservative "Counter -

Establishment": 



(1) Grow because of •••• MONEY! 
(2) Has wealthy donors: 

a. Like ..... osep~ .. Cook. . 
(3) Has wealthy conservative organizations. 
(4) Has wealthy televangelists. 
(5) Has many fundraisers. 

5. 1980 - The 2 main goals of the Conservative 
Counter-Establishment: 

A) Unrestricted free enterprise. 
B) Minimal regulation of econom.ic life. 

( 6. 1980 - Americans turn to religion •••• Especially, 

( 

Evangelical Christian Churches: 
A) Becomes a powerful political factor. 
B) Called "The Religious Right." 
C) "Televangelists": 

I. Own Television shows. 
II. Own TV Networks. 
III. Own Colleges. 
IV. Own Political Groups. 
V. Are opposed to Women's Liberation. 
VI. Are opposed to abortion. 
VII. Are opposed to gay rights. 
VIII. Are opposed to liberal programs. 
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IX. Favor prayer in all schools. 
X. Favor lower taxes. 
XI. Favor limited government. 
XII. Will make millions of dollars! 
XIII. Will flaunt their materialism! 
XIV. Will be a political factor! 

D) Examples: 
I. Pat Robertson: "The 700 Club." 
II. Fundamentalist, -Jerry Falwell, head of "The 

Moral Majority": 
(1) "The Old Time Gospel Hour." 
(2) Liberty Baptist College in Virginia. 

III. -Jim & Tammy Faye Bakker: "P.T.L"(Praise 
The Lord). 
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1980 - February 
1. February 2 & 3, 1980 - Santa Fe, New Mexico -

New Mexico State Penitentiary: 
A) 100's of inmates riot. 
B) Take control of the prison. 
C) Hold it for 36 hours. 
D) 33 inmates killed: 

I. Most by other inmates. 

2. February 22, 1980 - Winter Olympic Games -
Lake Placid, New York - "The Miracle on Ice": 
A) U.S. Hockey Team - Coach Herb Brooks. 
B) Beat Russia ••• 4-3! 
C) 2 days later - Feb. 24th - Beat Finland for Gold 

Medal. 
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1980 - April 
1. April 7, 1980 - U.S. severs all diplomatic ties 

with Iran. 



( 

( 

1980 - May 
1. May 17, 1980 - Miami, Florida: 

A) White Policeman - Acquitted in shooting of a 
Black Man. 

B) Starts 3 days of rioting and looting. 

C) 18 people are killed. 
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May 18,1980 
The Eruption of Mt. St. Helens 

1. Mt. St. Helens: 
A) 9,677 foot volcano. 
B) Southern Washington. 
C) 45 miles northeast of Portland, Oregon. 
D) Hasn't erupted since 1857 ••• 123 years! 

2. Hasn't been a violent eruption in the U.S. in 60 
years. 

3. March 29, 1980 - Earthquake - Mt. St. Helens 
is starting to stir! 

4. March 27, 1980 - Morning: 
A) Minor eruption. 
B) Spews ash over a 50 mile radius. 

, 

5. Carefully watched from March through April 
and into May of 1980. 

6. Sunday - May 18, 1980 - Morning - Two minor 
earthquakes: 
A) 8:32 - Morning - She blows!!! 
B) The north face of the mountain erupts and 

explodes! 
C) Blows 1,377 feet off the top of the 

mountain! 
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I. From 9,677 feet to 8,400 feetl 
D) Explosion is heard 200 miles awayl 
E) Explosion is equal to the largest hydrogen 

bomb ever exploded: 
I. 10 million tons of TNTIIIII 
II. Is 2,500 times larger than the Atomic 

Bomb dropped on Hiroshimal 
III. The largest natural explosion in 32,000 

yearsl 
F) Blast leaves a crater 1 mile wide at the top 

of the mountainl 
G) Eruption creates: 

I. Heat. 
II. Gases. 
III. Ash. 
IV. Mudslides and flooding. 

H) Heat wave covers 154 square miles: 
I. Heat blisters paint on cars miles away. 

I) Blast wave on the northwest face: 
I. Levels the forests in an area 8 miles long 

and 15 miles widel 
II. 44,000 acres of trees are flattened I 

J) Ash and gas cover 154 square miles. 
K) Ash is blown 12 miles up into the 

stratospherel 
I. Sun is totally blacked out tuming day into 

nightl 
II. The hot ash starts over 200 forest fires. 
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L) The ash cloud will be seen as far away as 
Colorado and Montana. 

M) The hot ash reaches 1,500 degrees in 
temperature. 

N) The ash will eventually reach the east 
coast of the United States! 
I. Ash will settle in Wshington, Idaho, 

Montana, and Oregon. 
II. The ash circles the globe until 1983. 

0) 62 people are killed. 
P) Over $3 billion in damage. 

7. From May 25, 1980 thru October 18, 1980: 
A) 10 minor eruptions. 

8. Small eruptions continue until 2000. 
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1980 - Summer 
1. u.S. boycotts Summer Olympics: 

A) Held in Moscow, Russia. 
B) Why? •• Russia has invaded and will not get 

out of Afghanistan! 



( 1980 - November 
1. November 4, 1980 - Presidential Election: 

A) Republican, Ronald Reagan. 
B) 40th President. 
C) 1st Term. 
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1980 - December 
1. December 8, 1980 - New York City - Mark David 

Chapman: 

A) Shoots & kills former Beatie, John Lennon. 



( 1981 

( 
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1. Start of a sharp Recession - Will not end until 
the Spring of 1984: 
A) Unemployment rises. 
B) Federal Budget Deficit increases. 

2. IBM - Offers the 1st Personal Computer for sale: 

A) Called a "PC" ••••• Personal Computer! 

3. AIDS first appears: 
A) Acquired Immune Deficiency Syndrome. 
B) Caused by the Human Immunodeficiency 

Virus (HIV). 
C) Destroys the Immune System! 
D) 1st shows up in young, Homosexual Males! 

E) THEN, starts showing up in Heterosexuals! 
F) Transmitted primarily in body fluids: 

I. Seman. 
II. Blood (Transfusions, Etc.). 
III. Birth Transmission ••• Mother to Baby. 

G) Will become the World's number #1 killer!! 

4. The Economic Recovery Act is passed: 
A) Cuts Federal Income Taxes by 5% in the first 

year and 10% in years two and three! 
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B) Who benefits the most? •• THE WEALTHY!!! 
I. Why? •• Tax structure is less progressive! 

5. PATCO (Professional Air Traffic Controllers) 

strike: 
A) Because of unsafe conditions! 

B) Reagan will order all of them fired!! 

C) Strikebreakers will be used for their jobs!! 

D) Will not be hired back!! 

6. Black-American economic status: 

A) Will stagnate and decline during Reagan's 8 
years! 

7. Reagan will openly oppose: 

A) The Voting Rights Act of the 1960's! 

B) Busing! 

C) Affirmative Action! 
D) Martin Luther King's birthday being 

recognized as a National Holiday!! 

8. Reagan Conservatives: 

A) Condemn Feminism! 
B) Condemn the changing role of Women in 

America! 
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I. Believe Women who take jobs and hold 

public positions are undermining the 

American Family Life! 
C) Undermine the E.R.A. (Equal Rights 

Amendment). 

9. Reverend, Jerry Falwell - Condemns 
Homosexuality on Religious grounds!!! 
A) Claims equal rights for Gays and Women will 

promote immorality and corrupt children! 

10. Reagan opposes the Communist Sandanista 
Government of Nicaragua: 

A) Supports the Anti-Communist Government of 
EI Salvador. 



1981 - January 
1. January 20th 

- Ronald Reagan is 
sworn in as President: 

A) 33 minutes after: 
I. Last 52 American hostages are 

released by Iran after 444 days 
of captivity: 
(1) Flown out of Iran. 

2. 69 year old, Republican, Ronald 
Reagan - 40th President: 

A) 1st Term. 
B) Oldest President. 
C) Former Actor. 
D) Former Governor of California. 
E) His goals •••• Will come to be called 

"Reaganomics": 
I. Decrea$e the role of Government 

in American economic life. 
II. Decrease the role of 



Government in American social 
life. 

III. Reduce Federal functions. 
IV. Reduce Federal benefits. 
V. Reduce taxes. 
VI. Reduce Government 

regulations. 
VII. Reduce the power of Unions. 
VIII. Restore economic growth. 

F) What does he do?? 
I. Increases the Defense Budget: 

(1) In 1980 it is $134 billion. 
(2) In 1989 it is over $300 billion! 

II. Orders the construction of a 
controversial weapons system. 

III. Orders the construction of the 
B-1 Bomber. 

IV. Orders the construction of the 
B-2 Stealth Bomber. 

V. Orders the construction of the 



MX, Peacekeeper, Multi-Headed, 
Nuclear, Missile. 

VI. Orders the construction of the 
Neutron Bomb •••• Capable of 
spreading radiation over a Y2 
mile area. 

VII. Opposes government spending 
on education. 

VIII. Opposes preservation of the 
Environment. 

IX. Orders budget cuts to O.S.H.A. 
X. Orders budget cuts to the E.P.A. 
XI. Opposes Federal Health 

benefits to aged and poor. 
XII. Opposes Federal Housing for 

the poor. 
XIII. Opposes Federal Urban Aid. 
XIV. Opposes the Federal Food 

Stamp Program. 
XV. Opposes Federal aid to 



develop the Arts. 
XVI. Opposes research on 

synthetic fuels. 
XVII. Rejects Nixon's foreign 

policy of "Detente." 
XVIII. Abandons Carter's policy of 

International Human Rights. 
XIX. Revives the Anti-Communist 

emotions of the 1940's & 
1950's. 

XX. Advocates direct 
confrontation with the 
Communists. 

G) Is openly Pro-Big Wealth! 
H) Is openly Anti-Labor: 

I. Calls Unions: "Selfish, special 
interest groups!" 

I) LOVES Luxury: 
I. He and wife, Nancy, establish 

what comes to be called: "The 



Royal Presidency": 
(1) Inauguration costs 5 times 

more than Carter's! 
(2) They live a lavish lifestyle in 

the White House • 
..I) Is very superstitious. 
K) Dozes off a lot. 
L) Exhibits the early stages of 

Alzheimer's Disease. 
M) Does as Nancy tells him to do! 

I. She is a firm believer in 
Astrologer, Joan Quigley: 

(1) If it is a "bad day": 
a. She forbids him from talking 

to the public! 
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March 31, 1981 
The Attempted Assassination of 

President Ronald Reagan 
1. March 31, 1982 - Washington, D.C. - Hilton 

Hotel: 
A) Reagan has made a speech to a labor 

gathering. 
B) Emerges. 
C) Waves at people. 
D) Heads for limousine. 
E) It is 2:25 - Afternoon. 
F) From in front of the curving stone wall at 

the VIP entrance: 
I. Man fires 6 shots with a .22 caliber 

handgun! 
G) Over in 2 seconds! 
H) Reagan is shoved into the car and onto the 

floor: 
I. Speeds away! 

I) A bullet has glanced off the car and hit 
Reagan under the left arm: 
I. Glances off a rib. 
II. Punctures his left lung. 
III. Stops 3 inches from his heart. 

-I) Hospital: 
I. Reagan undergoes 2 hours of surgery. 
II. Bullet is removed. 



K) Back at the scene: 
I. Shooter has been grabbed and wrestled 

down by Union Representative, Alfred 
Antonucci. 

L) Wounded are: 
I. Secret Service agent, Tim McCarthy: 

(1) Stomach ••• Will recover. 
II. Policeman, Thomas Delahanty: 

(1) Neck ••• Will recover. 
III. White House Press Secretary, .James 

Brady: 
(1) Foreheadl 
(2) Most seriousl 
(3) 5 hours of surgery to remove bulletl 
(4) Will take years to recoverl 
(5) Minor brain damagel 

2. Shooter ••• 25 year old, .John Hinckley .Jr.: 
A) Obsessed with actress, .Jodie Foster. 
B) Writes her many love letters. 
C) Tells her in letter he is going to kill Reagan. 
D) Attempt is to get her attention. 
E) Buys the pistol in Dallas, Texas: 

I. Pawnshop ••• $47.00111 
F) Mental institution for the criminally insane 

for life. 



( 

( 

1981 - April 
1. Reagan halts U.S. aid to Nicaragua. 

2. April 12, 1981 - Space Shuttle - "Columbia" -
Launched: 

A) 1st re-useable space vehicle. 
B) 36 orbits. 
C) April 14th - Lands - Edwards Air Force Base -

California. 
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May 23,1981 
The Chicago Rippers 

1. May 23, 1981 - 28 year old, Linda Sutton - Abducted from 
her Elmhurst home (Suburb of Chicago): 
A) 10 days later - Mutilated body is found in a field next to 

the Rip Van Winkle Motel: 
(1) Left breast is missing. 

2. May 15, 1982 - 21 year old, Linda Borowski - Abducted 
Outside the Elmhurst realtors office where she works: 
A) October 10, 1982 - Badly decomposed corpse is found. 

3. May 29, 1982 - Hanover Park in Cook County - Shui Mak 
is reported missing: 

A) September 30, 1982 - Barrington - Remains are 
found. 

4. June 13, 1982 - Prostitute, Angel York, gets into a van with 
a "John": 

A) Handcuffed! 
B) Breast slashed open! 
C) Dumped to die - BUT lives! 
D) Gives description to police. 

5. August 28, 1982 - Banks of the Chicago River - Teenage 
prostitute, Sandra Delaware, found stabbed and strangled 
to death: 
A) Left breast cut off. 

6. September 8, 1982 - Chicago alley -Body of 30 year old, 
Rose Davis found: 



( A) Stabbed, strangled, and left breast cut off. 

7. September 11, 1982 - Wheaton, Illinois - Department store 
- 42 year old, Carole Pappas - Wife of "Cubs" pitcher, Milt 
Pappas - Disappears: 

A) No trace! 

8. October 6, 1982...,... 20 year old, prostitute, Beverly 
Washington - Is found nude near some railroad tracks: 

A) Has been assaulted. 
B) Left breast almost severed. 
C) Right breast deeply slashed. 
D) BUT, she is alive! 
E) Emergency surgery saves her life. 

9. October 6, 1982 - Hours later - Street corner phone booth: 
A) Drug dealer, Rafael Torado is shot and killed and his 

( buddy wounded by a passing van! 

10. October 20, 1982 - 28 year old, contract worker, Robin 
Gecht - Arrested for the assault on Beverly Washington -
AND, the slashing of another prostitute,Cynthia Smith: 

A) Smith escaped from his van! 
B) Gecht has once been accused of molesting his younger 

sister. 
C) BUT, there is no proof he is "The Ripper" in the 

slayings. 
D) October 26th 

- Makes bail! 

11. Authorities learn that Gecht is one of four men who have 
rented adjoining rooms at the Rip Van Winkle Motel: 

A) This was 1 month before Linda Sutton was murdered. 
B) Manager says the group was "party animals." . 
C) Manager says they frequently brought women to their 

room. 
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D) Manager says they were "cultists" or "devil 
worshippers. " 

12. 23 year old, Thomas Kokoraleis is arrested: 
A) Fails a polygraph test. 
B) Talks!! 
C) Describes a "satanic chapel" in Gecht's upstairs 

bedroom. 
E) Says women are tortured with knives and ice picks -

Gang raped - and Sacrificed to Satan! 
F) Says the members are: G"echt - Himself - His 2 brothers, " 

Andrew & Theodore Kokoraleis - and 23 year old, 
Edward Spreitzer. 

" G) Says they liked to sever one or both breasts with a thin 
wire garrot: 

***Each would eat a portion! 
*** The rest was kept in Gecht's "trophy box!" 
*** At one time there were 15 breasts in the "box!" 

H) Says some of the women were "sacrificed" at the Rip 
Van Winkle Motel. 

13. November 5, 1982 - Robin Gecht, Ed Spreitzer, and 20 
year old Andrew Kokoraleis are arrested: 

A)$1 million bail!! 

14. At Gecht's apartment: 
A) Satanic altar! 
B) Rifle - Matched to the Torado murder! 
C)"Suspect the group of men have murderede 18 women 

over an 18 month period of time! 

15. November 12, 1982 - Tom Kokoraleis - Life! 

16. September 20, 1983 - Robin Gecht -120 years!! 
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17. Ed Spreitzer - 4 life sentences!!! 

18. February 11, 1985 - Andrew Kokoraleis - Death!!!! 

19. March 16, 1999 - Andrew Kokoraleis -Put to death by 
lethal injection. 
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May 28,1981 
Lawrencia "Laurie" Bembenek 

1. Laurie Bembenek: 
A) Former Playboy Bunny. 
B) Becomes ••• Policewoman: 

I. Milwaukee, Wisconsin. 
C) Male police officers call her "Bambi." 

2. December 1980: 
A) Meets fellow officer ••• Fred Schultz: 

I. This is 1 month after his divorce from his 
wife of 11 years, Christine. 

3 • .January 30, 1981: 
A) 21 year old, Laurie, and Fred are married. 

4. She discovers illegal activities by fellow 
officers: 
A) Drug use. 
B) Superiors improperly using federal funds. 
C) Sexual abuses. 
D) Graft. 
E) Corruption. 

5. She is harrasedl 

6. She files a suit for discrimination: 
( A) Retaliation against her: 
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I. Her tires are slashed! 
II. A dead rat is placed on her windshield! 
III. Late night - Anonymous - Threatening 

phone calls! 

7. May 28, 1981 - Milwaukee, Wisconsin: 
A) 2:30 - Morning - Police arrive at the home 

of Christine Schultz: 
I. Have been called by one of her sons. 

8) 30 year old, Christine Schultz: 
I. In her bedroom. 
II. On the bed. 
III. Dead. 
IV. Dressed in a yellow Adidas t-shirt and 

panties. 
V. Gagged. 
VI. Hands tied in front of her body. 
VII. Large bullet wound to the area of the 

right shoulder. 
C) No forced entry! 
D) A brown hair is removed from her calf. 
E) One of her sons says he saw a man in his 

mother's room!!!! 
I. Large white male. 
II. Ponytail. 
III. Green jogging suit. 
IV. Pearl handled gun. 
V. Green, army, fatigue jacket. 
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VI. Low-cut, black, police-type shoes. 
F) Christine's boyfriend, policeman, Stewart 

Honeck: 
I. Says: "I think Freddie did itl" 

G) Fred's alibi ••• ON DUTYI 
H) Fred calls Laurie: 

I. Wakes her upl 
I) Schultz and partner, Michael Durfee, drive to 

Fred and Laurie's apartment: 
I. Hood of her car is cold. 
II. Fred's off-duty .38 is there and hasn't 

been fired: 
(1) This SAME pistol will later be 

determined to be the murder weaponl 
-I) 4:30 - Morning - 2 Detectives arrive: 

I. Ask Laurie if she owns a gunl 
II. Ask Laurie if she owns a green jogging 

suitl 
K) Laurie says she has been home ••• Sleepingl 

I. Swears she didn't commit the crime. 

8. Investigation and evidence: 
A) Weeks before ••• 12 residents of the area, 

including 2 policemen: 
I. See a man jogging ••• ln a green outfitl 
II. Physically ••• Matches the descriptionl 

B) Christine has told her lawyer: 
(\ I. She is afraid of Fredl 
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II. Fred has threatened her! 
III. She is being followed! 

C) Fred's back-up gun is checked: 
I. Blood in the barrel! 
II. "Blow-back" from a wound! 
III. Matches Christine's blood! 

(1) This makes Fred and Laurie suspects! 
D) Laurie is questioned: 

I. Says Fred is bitter over how much money 
the divorce is costing him! 

E) Fred volunteers for a polygraph test: 
I. Passes! ••• BUT, lies about where he is on 

the night of the murder! 
F) Fred cannot produce his logbook: 

I. Later learned ••• He and partner are in a 
bar! 

G) Laurie refuses a polygraph test: 
I. On the advice of FRED"S attorney! 

H) Francis Zess says ••• Months before: 
I. Party ••• Laurie makes a statement: "Have 

Christine blown away!" 
II. Says Laurie approached people to kill 

Christine. 
III. Says people have seen a green jogging 

suit in Fred and Laurie's apartment: 
(1) NEVER FOUND! 

I) Hairs found on Christine's leg: 
I. Said to match Laurie's! 



( II. ACTUALLY, match a wig found plugging 
the drain in Fred and Laurie's apartment! 
(1) Wig BELONGS to dudy Zees: 

a. Boyfriend of dudy Zees HATES Fred 
Schultz! 

b. He has sworn to get even with Fred! 

9. dune 26, 1981: 
A) Laurie is charged with 1st Degree Murderll 

10. February 24, 1982 ••• Trial starts. 

11. March 9, 1982 ••• Guilty ••• Life! 

( 12. Prison. 

13. dune 1984 ••• Fred divorces her! 

14. In prison she will communicate with, and 
meet, Dominic Gugliatto: 

A) Fall in love. 

15. duly 15, 1990 ••• Gugliatto helps her escape! 

16. October 1990 ••• Canada ••• Both are arrested! 

17. Her attorney petitions for a new murder trial: 
( A) NEW evidence: 
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I. Witness, criminal, Fred Horenberger, 
makes an admission: 
(1) "Fred Schultz paid me $10 thousand to 

kill Christinel" 

18. 1991 ••• Horenberger kills himself! 

19. December 1992 ••• Deal is made: 
A) Laurie pleads "no contest" to 2nd Degree 

Murder: 
I. Paroled ••• Freel 



1981 - August 
1. August 1, 1981 - Debut - "MTV." 

( 
'-
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1981 - December 
1. Reagan approves a $19 million plan: 

A) Have the C.I.A. arm, supply, and train the 

Contra Rebels in Nicaragua! 

I. They are Nicaraguan exiles. 

2. Reagan supports the Government of EI Salvador: 

A) He is fully AWARE and could care LESS that 

the Government is engaging in: 

I. Kidnappings! 

II. Torture! 

III. Murder! 



c 1982 

1. 1982 - "Materialism" is HUGE: 
A) The wealthy FLAUNT their wealth: 

I. Like a re-birth of "The Gilded Age." 

2. 1982 - Wisconsin - 1 st State: 
A) Law. 
B) Protecting rights of Gay Men and Lesbians. 

3. 1982 - Federal Government - Breaks up A.T. and T.: 
A) Monopoly on long-distance service. 

{ 4. 1982 - Reagan openly challenges Russia: 
A) Publicly calls the "The Evil Empire." 
B) Refuses to hold a summit meeting with them. 

5. 1982 - Reagan: " 
A) Supports, arms, and trains the Mujahedeen of 

Afghanistan: 
I. To fight the Russians. 

6. 1982 - Reagan suffers a defeat: 
A) Congress extends the Voting Rights Act. 

~/ 

7. 1982 - Reagan orders his Secretary of the Interior, 

( .James Watt: 

" 
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A) To lift environmental restrictions. 
B) Watt: 

I. Anti-conservation. 
II. Pro-business. 
III. Actions hurt the environment. 
IV. Actions add to the acid rain problem. 
V. Actions add to the pollution of land and waters. 

8. 1982 - Reagan attacks: 
A) Social Welfare programs. 
B) Anti-Poverty programs. 
C) The Food Stamp program. 
D) School Meal programs. 
E) Aid to Cities. 
F) Public Housing. 
G) ~ob Training for the Unemployed. 

9. 1982 - Reagan "Right to Life" conservatives .:.. 
Denounce abortion: 

A) Call it murder of the unborn. 
B) Claim it is done by selfish women who reject 

motherhood and family •. 
C) Congress: 

I. Stops Federal funds to pay for abortions. 
D) Proposed Amendment to outlaw abortion •••• Fails!!I 
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1982 
Gary Leon Ridgeway 

"The Green River Killer 

1. Seattle, Washington area. 

2. 1982 - 1st murder. 

3. Victims: 
A) Females. 
B) Runaways and/or Prostitutes. 
C) Strangles to death. 
D) Sexually assaults alive and" dead. 
E) Bodies dumped along the Green River and in 

forested areas. 

4. YEARS pass •••• No clue to killer. 

5. DNA is refined. " 

6. Killer •••• Gary Leon Ridgeway: 
A) Twice divorced. 
B) Married for 3rd time. 
C) Has a son. 
D) Steady job. 

7. November 30,2001 - Arrested -19 year spree!!! 



( 8. Makes deal for Life instead of Death penalty: 
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A) Tells who and where of victims who are unknown 
and missing. 

9. Murders: 
A) 48 for sure •. 
B) Thinks he has killed 71. 
C) Death toll is between 70 and 80. 



( 1982 - January 

( 

( 

1. Reagan's "New Federalism" has had very little 
success. 
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March 5, 1982 
The Death of .John Belushi 

1 • .John Belushi: 
A) Born ••• 1949 ••• Chicago, Illinois. 
B) Comedian: 

I. NBC's "Saturday Night Live": 
(1) 1974 to 1979. 

C) Actor: 
I. 2 movies in 1978: 

(1) "The Blues Brothers." 
(2) "Animal House." 

D) 1977 - Marries .Judith .Jacklin: 
I. Knows from old high school days. 

2. Constant coast to coast partying: 
A) Overeating. 
B) Excessive drinking. 
C) Excessive running around. 
D) Excessive smoking. 
E) Excessive drugs. 
F) Women. 

3. March 1982 ••• Hollywood, California: 
A) Checks into "The Chateau Marmont Hotel": 

I. $200 per day room. 
II. With him is drug addict, Cathy Smithl 

B) 5 day binge of drugsll 
C) She injects him with a "speedball": 



( I .. Cocaine and heroin .. 
D) He dies!!!! 

4 .. September 1986: 
A) She is tried for murder .. 
8) Guilty of a lesser charge: 

I .. 3 years .. 
C) 1988 ...... Paroled: 

I .. Back to Toronto, Canada .. 

( 
, 
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March 22, 1982 
Larry Eyler 

1. March 22, 1982 - Lexington, Kentucky - Jay Reynolds is 
found - Stabbed to death. 

2. October 3, 1982 - Indianapolis, Indiana - Road - Delvoyd 
Baker - Found - Strangled to death. 

3. October 23, 1982 - Lowell, Indiana -19year old, Steven 
Crockett - Found dead - Stabbed 32 times. 

4. November 6, 1982 - Joliet, Illinois - Robert Foley - Found 
murdered. 

5. December 25, 1982 - Belshaw, Indiana - Field - 25 year 
old, John Johnson - Found murdered. 

6. December 28, 1982 - Bellville, Indiana - 21 year old, John 
Roach - Found murdered: 
A) Same day - Newport, Indiana - Steven Agan - Found 

murdered. 

7. By July 2, 1983 - Body count is 12 - Many mutilated after 
death - Some are disembowled! 

8. August 31, 1983 - Lake Forest, Illinois - Field - No. #13-
Ralph Calise - Stabbed 17 times. 

9. September 30, 1983 - Indiana Highway Patrolman -
Spots a pickup along the interstate: 

A) 2 men in it. 
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B) One is tied up! 
C) Says he is being held by the other man ...... Larry 

Eyler! 
D) Search pickup - Surgical tape - Nylon clothesline -

Hunting knife with human blood on it! 
E) Blood is found to be that of Ralph Calise. 
F) 

10. Search of the pickup is illegal: 
A) Forced to release Eyler! 

11. October 4,1983 - Kenosha, Wisconsin -14 year old, 
Derrick Hansen - Found murdered - Disembowled! 

12. October 15; 1983 - Renssalaer, Indiana - Young "John 
Doe" found murdered. 

13. October 18, 1983 - Abandoned farm - 4 bodies: 
. A) 1 is decapitated! 

B) All males - All have pants pullrd down! 

14. December 5, 1983 - Effingham, Illinois - Another "John 
Doe." 

15. December 7, 1983 -.Indianapolis, Indiana - Richard 
Wayne and another "John Doe" - Found murdered. 

16. May 7, 1984 - Zion, Illinois - 22 year old, David Block­
Found murdered. 

17. August 21, 1984 - Chicago, Illinois - Janitor's dog 
sniffing at Larry Eyler's garbage - Master checks out: 

A) Police called! 
B) Remains of 15 year old, homosexual, street hustler, 

Danny Bridges! 
C) Disembowled! 
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18. Eyler is arrested! 

19. July 9, 1986 - Convicted - Sentenced to death: 
A) As a result of all of his homosexual encounters - Has 

AIDS! 
B) March 6,1994 - The murderer of 21 - In prison -

Dies of AIDS! 



( 1982 - May 
1. May 1, 1982 - Knoxville, Tennessee: 

A) World's Fair opens. 

( 

( 
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1982 - June 
1. New York City - Central Park - 700,000 people: 

A) Call for a "freeze" on Nuclear Weapons. 

B) Reagan rejects the demonstration as: 

I N ·· , . alve. 
II. Communist inspired! 

2. June 30, 1982 - The E.R.A. (Equal Rights 

Amendment): 

A) Falls 3 states short of the 38 needed for 

ratification! 
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1982 - July 
1. July 19, 1982 - Worst Recession since The 

Great Depression: 
A) 11 % Unemployment! 

B) 140/0 Poverty Rate! 

2. July 28, 1982 - San Francisco, California: 

A) 1st City in America: 
I. Law - Banning - Sale & Possession of a 

Handgun! 



November 13, 1982 
The Vietnam Veterans Memorial- "The Wall" 

1. Idea of wounded, decorated Vietnam War veteran, Jan 
Scruggs: 
A) Aprill979 .. Vetnam Veterans Fund to build it is started: 

I. Helped by John Wheeler m and Robert Doubek. 

2. July 1, 1980 .. Site on the mall in Washington, D.C. is given 
to build it: 
A) Design of Maya Ying Lin: 

I. Picked out of 1,421 entries. 

3. The American Legion and V.F.W. raise and donate $1.5 
million for "The Wall": 
A) Critics call it "The Black Gash" or "The Wall of 

(, Shame." 

4. January 1982 .. Decided to add a statue and flag: 
A) Statue is sculpted by Frederick Hart: 

I. 3 Vietnam soldiers: 
*** Anglo, Black, and Hispanic. 
***Flag will be next to it. 

5. March 1982 .. Construction on the 3 man statue and flag 
starts. 

6. November 13, 1982 .. Veterans Day .. "The Wall" is 
dedicated. 

7. November 11, 1984 .. The statue and flag are dedicated. 
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1983 

1. 1983 - Reagan fires Secretary of the Interior, .James 
Watt: 

A) Making racial slurs. 

2. 1983 - The Supreme Court: 
A) Upholds Roe vs. Wade. 

3. 1983 - Women: 
A) Make up Y2 of the paid work force. 

4. 1983 - Use of "Crack"(Cheap Cocaine)starts to 
become big: 

A) Leads to more crime and violence. 

5. 1983 - "YUPPIES"(Young Urban Professionals): 
A) Make up 5% of the "Baby Boom Generation." 

.----

6. 1983 - The Social Security Reform Act: 
A) Raises the minimum age for full benefits from 65 to 

67. 
B) Retirees must pay taxes on some benefits. 

7. 1983 - Reverend, .Jesse .Jackson: 
A) Leader of Operation PUSH: 

( I. People United to Save Humanity. 



( B) Preaches: 
I. Self-Esteem for Blacks. 
II. Economic Self-Help for Blacks. 

8. Last episode of "M.A.S.H.": 
A) 250 episodes. 
B) Watched by 125 million. 

9. Paul Kelley - 28th Commandant - U.S.M.C.: 

A) Born - 11/11/1928 - Boston, Massachusetts. 
B) Vietnam War. 

( 
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_February 13, 1983 
Gordon Kahl 

1. Gordon Wendell Kahl: 
A) Born ••• .January 8, 1920 ••• Heaton, North 

Dakota. 
B) Raised a farmer. 
C) 1938 ••• Graduates ••• High School. 
D) WW II: 

I. Army Air Corps ••• Turret Gunner. 
II. Silver Star ••• Bronze Star ••• 2 Air Medals ••• 

2 Purple Hearts ••• AND more. 
E) .January 6, 1945 ••• Marries ••• .Joan Seil. 
F) 5 feet 7 inches tall - 160 pounds. 
G) Traits: 

I. Quiet - Personable - Outspoken - Honest. 
II. Hardworking - Principled - Talented. 
III. Kind - Generous - Loyal to friends. 
IV. Likes children - Doesn't smoke, drink, or 

use profane language. 
V. Musician (Piano byear). 
VI. Electrician - Craftsman - Excellent 

mechanic. 
H) He and .Joan will have 6 children. 
I) Live and move around to: 

I. Fargo, North Dakota. 
II. Bowdon, North Dakota. 
III. Los Angeles, California (Winter months). 
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IV. Arkansas: 
(1) Meets and becomes friends of many 

people who have the same beliefs as 
himself • 

.J) Early 1950's ••• Will be a strong supporter of 
Senator .Joe McCarthy. 

K) Becomes an extremist and very anti­
.Jewish. 

2. After 1967 he decides to stop paying taxes: 
A) Feels they are illegal! 
B) Believes the I.R.S. is a .Jewish-Communist 

front organization. 
C) Points out that an income tax is the 2 nd 

plank of the Communist platform. 
D) Believes the Federal Reserve System is a 

.Jewish-Communist front organization. 
E) States: "Don't pay tithes to the synagogue 

of Satan!" 
F) Believes farmers are victims of: 

I. A .Jewish-led Communist supported 
conspiracy that has infiltrated the U.S. 
Government, .Judicial System, and Law 
Enforcement: 
(1) Purpose ••• To destroy the Christian 

Republic of America's founding fathers. 

3. 1973 - Becomes a member of The Posse 
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Comitatus: 
A) "Power of the County." 
B) Founded in 1969 in Portland, Oregon by 

Henry Beach (Retired dry cleaner with Nazi 
beliefs). 

C) At one time will have 78 chapters in 23 
states. 

D) Right-wing extremist group. 
E) Believe in preserving the Christian faith. 
F) Do not believe in any legitimate form of 

government beyond the county level. 
G) Do not believe in any law enforcement 

officials higher than the county sheriff. 
H) Believe God is the ONLY true law. 
I) Believe Com mom Law Associations and 

Christian Grand .Juries will interpret God's 
laws • 

.J) Believe the Constitution is derived from the 
Bible and thus, believe in it literally. 

K) Do not recognize any amendments after the 
Bill of Rights: 

I. Believe they are the work of .Jews. 
L) Are anti-.Jewishl 
M) Are totally against any mixing of races. 

4. 1976 - Texas - Kahl and 5 other Posse 
members go on a television show: 

A) Urge the people not to pay their taxes. 



B) I.R.S. issues an arrest warrant against him 
for not paying his taxes in 1973 and 1974: 
I. Trial ••• I.R.S. does not deny they have 

pursued him because he goes on 
television and urges others not to pay 
taxes!! 

5 • .June 22, 1977 - Convicted - 1 year in jail and 5 
years probation: 
A) Is ordered to dissolve his relationship with 

the Posse and start paying taxes. 
B) Is ordered to undergo a psychiatric 

examination: 
I. Is found to be fanatically religious and 

schizophrenic. 
C) His appeals are turned down! 
D) .January 2, 1979 - Enters Leavenworth 

Federal Prison in Kansas: 
I. Serves 8 months and 4 days. 
II. Paroled. 

6. Returns home to North Dakota: 
A) .Joins the Constitutionalist Party: 

I. Founded by Dr. Clarence Martin of Medina, 
North Dakota. 

II. Believe the government is simply an 
extension of the Christian Church. 

III. Believe the Constitution is biblically 
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derived and to be strictly interpreted. 

7. Kahl believes that if he is ever returned to 
prison the government will give him a drug to 
induce a heart attack and kill him! 

8. 1980 - Report warns the F.B.I. that all 
members of the Posse should be considered 
armed and dangerous. 

9. November 1980 - The I.R.S. issues a lien 
against 80 acres of Kahl's land for failure to 
pay $35 thousand in back taxes: 
A) His wife pleads with him to pay it. 
B) He refuses! 

10. 1981 - The I.R.S. seizes the 80 acres! 

11. March 31, 1981 - A federal arrest warrant for 
Gordon Kahl is issued for violation of parole 
probation! 

A) His wife borrows the back-tax money from 
her brother and pays off the back taxes on 
the land: 
I. When Gordon and his son, Yorie Von Kahl 

(.lust like his father), find out ••• They 
EXPLODE at her actions!! 
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12. August 27, 1982 - Yorie, A Bishop in the 
Gospel Doctrine Church of ~esus Christ, 
excommunicates his own mother!! 

13. Sunday - February 13, 1983 - Medina, North 
Dakota: 

A) 2:00 - Afternoon - Gordon Kahl, ~oan Kahl, 
Yorie Kahl, and friend, Scott Fahl, arrive at 
Dr. Clarence Martin's Clinic for a meeting in 
the Kahl Chrysler station wagon. 

B) Gordon, Yorie, and Scott each have Mini 14 
rifles with banana clips: 
I. Yorie also has a shoulder holster with a 

.45 in it. 
C) 18 people are at the meeting. 
D) The U.S. Deputy Marshal's office for North 

Dakota is notified that Kahl is attending the 
meeting: 
I. 4 Deputy Marshals (Two teams of 2 men) 

head for Medina. 
E) Deputy Sheriff, Bradley Kapp, sits a 

distance from the Clinic watching the 
parking lot through binoculars. 

F) 27 year old, Medina Chief of Police, Darrell 
Graf, warns Kapp to call off the arrest 
attempt or "there will be bodies 
everywhere": 
I. Graf: "I'm not getting involved." 
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II. Kapp: "You don't have to, we'll take care 
of it." 

III. Graf urges any attempt to be done far 
enough out of town (1 mile North) so 
nobody is in danger and no way to 
escape. 

IV. The why and WHERE of this arrest 
attempt is still a haunting question! 

G) Meeting starts to break up: 
I. Gordon, .Joan, Yorie, and Scott prepare to 

leave. 
II. Scott rushes back in ••• He has spotted 

Kapp watching through binoculars. 
III. Fahl: "We're being watched!" 

H) U.S. Deputy Marshals, 32 year old Robert 
Cheshire, and 57 year old .James Hopson, 
arrive on the outskirts of Medina in a tan 
Dodge Ram Charger: 

I. Inform Kapp of their presence over the 
radio. 

I) U.S. Deputy Marshals, Ken Muir and Carl 
Wigglesworth arrive at the outskirts in 
maroon colored Dodge Diplomat: 
I. Will stop and set up a road block short of 

where Graf has suggested! 
.J) At the Clinic ••• Gordon and David Broer get 

into Broer's AMC Hornet: 
I. Yorie gets under the wheel of the Kahl 
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station wagon ••• His mother is sitting in 
the passenger seat ••• Scott Fahl and 
Vernon Wegner get into the back seat. 

K) Meanwhile ••• Cheshire and Hopson have 
pulled up next to Kapp: 

I. Kapp gets into the Ram Charger with 
them. 

L) Outside of town, Marshal Ken Muir calls 
Graf on the radio asking for help: 
I. Graf ignores the call. 

M) Muir and Wigglesworth have set up the 
roadblock % mile short of where it should 
have been: 

I. It is next to the Wayne Reardon farm and 
can be seen easily. 

N) Medina Deputy Policeman, Steve Schnabel 
in his Mercury Marquis joins Muir and 
Wigglesworth: 
I. Red lights on both vehicles are flashing. 

0) The 2 Kahl Vehicles see Cheshire's Ram 
Charger following them: 
I. Reach the Reardon driveway ••• Spot the 

roadblock of Muir and Schnabel. 
II. Pull in the drive ••• Turn around ••• Back onto 

road ••• Can't go back! 
III. Cheshire has parked the Ram Charger 

diagonally across the road 15 feet from 
the Hornet. 



( 

( 

( 

P) Scott Fahl and Yorie Kahl jump out of the 
station wagon armed: 
I. Yorie aims at Cheshire in the driver's 

seat ••• Then moves 20 feet away behind a 
telephone pole. 

II. Fahl aims across the roof of the station 
wagon at the Ram Charger. 

III. Gordon Kahl gets out and behind the 
open door of the Hornet and aims at the 
Ram Charger. 

Q) Cheshire and Hopson get out of the 
Charger: 
I. Behind open doors. 
II. Cheshire aims an AR-15 at the 2 cars. 
III. Hopson aims a 12 guage shotgun at the 

2 cars. 
R) STANDOFF!! 
S) It is 5:45 ••• Cheshire calls Muir on the radio: 

I. Kapp gets out of the Charger and goes to 
the rear of the vehicle. 

T) It is 5:47 ••• Muir calls for backup: 
I. Muir and Schnabel move their vehicles 

down to within 75 yards of the scene and 
stop. 

U) Faul starts retreating towards the Reardon 
trailer houses: 
I. Wigglesworth leaves Muir and Schnabel 

and moves off across wet ground to cut 
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Fauloff. 
V) Behind the trailer ••• Faul aims at 

Wigglesworth, 85 yards away: 
I. Doesn't shoot ••• Goes around the trailer. 

W) It is now 5:48: 
I. Hopson in the ditch gets close to the 

Hornet. 
X) Muir and Schnabel move their vehicles to 

within 30 yards of the Reardon driveway. 
Y) It is 5:50: 

I. Hopson works his way to the rear of the 
station wagon. 

II. Wegner starts backing the station wagon 
up. 

III. He sees Hopson behind it with a 
Shotgun ••• Throws the car into park. 

IV. Hopson is talking to Gordon Kahl trying 
to get him to surrender while pounding 
on the station wagon ordering Wegner 
and -Joan Kahl out. 

Z) It is now 5:52: 
I. Muir and Schnabel get out of their 

vehicles. 
II. Schnabel has a .357 magnum pistol and a 

12 guage shotgun. 
III. Muir has a .38 pistol and is not wearing 

a bullet proof vest. 
AA) All are within 20 feet of each otherl 



( BB) It is 5:55: 
I. Vorie fires at Cheshire hitting him in the 

chest. 
II. Cheshire slumps into the Charger: "I'm 

hit!" 
III. Vorie fires at Kapp ••• Misses. 
IV. Kapp fires at Vorie with the shotgun ••• 

Hits him in the stomach knocking him to 
the ground. 

V. Gordon fires at Kapp ••• Hits windshield of 
Charger ••• Glass cuts Kapp's forehead. 

VI. Kapp jumps down into the ditch ••• Hit in 
the hand blowing his trigger finger off! 

VII. Gordon turns and fires North ••• Buliet 
glances and wounds Schnabel in the 
back of the leg. 

VIII. Schnabel hobbles into the ditch. 
IX. Gordon's next shot hits Muir in the chest 

killing him. 
X. Bullet has glanced and driven gravel into 

Hopson's brain! 
XI. In 30 seconds it's over!!! 
XII. Gordon walks up and points weapon at 

Schnabel ••• Schnabel gives him his 
pistol ••• Gordon drives Schnabel's car to 
Vorie. 

CC) Gordon inquires about Vorie. 
DD) Gordon walks over to the Ram Charger: 
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I. Shoots Cheshire in the head twicel 
II. Blows a chunk of his skull 20 feet!l 

EE) Kapp has staggered towards town: 
I. Meets up with Graf. 
II. Tells him: "Go down there and kill those 

mother fuckers." 
FF) Yori is loaded into Schnabel's car: 

I. Fahl drives to Dr. Martin's clinic. 
II. Followed in the station wagon by Gordon, 

Joan, Wegner, and Broers. 
GG) Dead at the scene are: . 

I. Deputy U.S. Marshal, Ken Muir. 
II. Deputy U.S. Marshal, Robert Cheshire. 

HH) Wounded ••• And all wind up at the clinic ••• 
Are: 

I. Yori Kahl ••• Severe stomach wound. 
II. Medina Police Deputy, Steve Schnabel ••• 

Leg wound. 
III. Deputy Sheriff, Brad Kapp ••• Cut to 

forehead and trigger finger blown off. 
IV. U.S. Deputy Marshall, Jim Hopson ••• Head 

wound. 
II) Gordon Kahl and Scott Fahl leave the clinic: 

I. In Schnabel's car. 
II. Drive to Kahl's farm. 
III. Get fresh clothing and ammunition. 
IV. Head out in Kahl's green 1966 Rambler 

car. 
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v. Fog virtually hides them. 

14. Monday night - February 14, 1983 - Gordon 
and Scott separate ••• Gordon drives off: 

A) Scott Fahl wants to see his wife and kids 
again: 

I. He will voluntarily surrender to 
authorities. 

II. Charged with 2 counts of murder. 

15. Gordon drives to Arkansas: 
A) Car is dismantled and gotten rid of by 

"Patriot" friends. 
B) For 4 months he will stay in "safe houses" 

of: 
I. Leonard Ginter, Art Russell, Bill Wade, 

and Ed Udey. 

16. Nationwide massive manhunt for Gordon 
Kahl: 

A) Federal government offers a $25 thousand 
reward for information leading to his 
capture. 

17. In Arkansas, Kahl uses the alias that he used 
when visiting there ••• "Sam Louden". 

18. Televised nationally is a plea for him to 



( surrender: 
A) A picture of his wife Joan is shown. 
B) Nursing home in Arkansas where Joan has 

worked when they visited the state: 
I. People recognize the picture of Joan as 

"Rachel Louden" ••• Her aliasl 
II. Authorities are informed ••• Now believe 

him to be in Arkansas. 

19. Yori Kahl and Scott Fahl are charged with 
murder. 

20. Joan Kahl, Vernon Wegner, and David Broer 
have lesser charges brought against them. 

21. Arraignment: 
A) Yorie and Scott refuse to plead: 

I. Claim they answer only to Godl 

22. May 9, 1983 - Picking the jury for the trials 
starts. 

23. May 12, 1983 - Trial starts. 

24. End of May 1983 ••• Verdicts: 
A) Vernon Wegner ••• Plea bargain for testimony 

No time for anything. 
C B) Joan Kahl ••• Not guilty. 
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C) David Broer: 
I. Not guilty on 7 assault charges. 
II. Guilty ••• Conspiracy and harboring a 

felony suspect. 
D) Yorie Kahl and Scott Fahl ••• Guilty on 2 

counts each of 2 nd degree murder. 

25. Arkansas ••• Karen Robertson, Art Russell's 
daughter ••• Calis F.B.I. and requests a 
meeting: 

A) Agent .Jack Knox meets with her. 
B) She tells him: 

I. Gordon Kahl has stayed with them. 
II. Gordon Kahl has also stayed at Ed Udey's 

and Leonard Ginter's. 
C) Her information will get her the $25 

thousand reward: 
I. Will also lead to the arrests of her father, 

Ed Udey, and Leonard Ginter. 
II. Has to identify and testify at Udey's and 

Ginter's trials. 
III. Her father, Udey, and Ginter will be sent 

to prison. 

26 • .June 1983 - Yorie Kahl and Scott Fahl are 
sentenced to 2 life sentences each. 

( 27 • .June 3, 1983 - Morning - Walnut Ridge, 
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Arkansas - Courthouse - Meeting: 
A) Local Sheriff's Deputies, Arkansas State 

Police, F.B.I., and U.S. Deputy Marshals: 
I. Gordon Kahl is at Leonard Ginter's house. 
II. In the house are Ginter, his wife Norma, 

and Gordon Kahl. 
III. Plans are made to raid the house that 

evening. 
B) Almost 40 men will be involved. 

28 • .June 3, 1983 - Smithville, Arkansas: 
A) 5:30 - Evening - Leonard Ginter emerges 

from house - Going fishing. 
B) Grabbed by F.B.I. agent .James Blasingame: 

I. Asked about Kahl ••• Won't answer. 
II. Ordered to call his wife from the house. 
III. "Norma, come outside. F.B.I. is here." 

C) She comes out ••• Grabbed by Sheriff Gene 
Matthews. 

D) 6:00 - Evening - Sheriff Gene Matthews, 
U.S. Deputy Marshal .Jim Hall, and 
Arkansas State Trooper Ed Fitzpatrick 
enter the house with weapons at the ready: 
I. Enter the kitchen. 
II. Matthews is in front ••• Foliowed by the 

other two. 
III. Kahl is behind the refrigerator. 
IV. Steps out ••• 2 shots at the same time. 
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V. Matthews is hit by Kahl and goes down. 
VI. Kahl is hit in the head by Matthews .41 

caliber handgun and collapses, dead. 
E) Hall drags Matthews to the garage. 
F) Matthews will be carried to a squad car and 

then delivered to an ambulance: 
I. Dies on the way to the hospital. 

G) Diesel fuel is poured down the air vents. 
H) Tear gas is fired in. 
I) Fire starts ••• Barrage of firing. 
~) ~ust after 8:00 - Evening - Stops. 
K) Kahl's charred body is removed. 

29. Gordon Kahl's body will be returned home 
and buried. 

30. Trials for: 
A) Ginter ••• Guilty ••• 13 years. 
B) Udey ••• Guilty ••• 5 years. 
C) Russell ••• Guilty ••• 6 months. 



( 1983 - March 
1. March 23, 1983 - Barney Clark - Dies: 

A) 1st Artificial Heart. 

B) Has lived 112 days with it! 
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1. April 4th thru the 9 th
, 1983 - Space Shuttle 

"Challenger": 
A) 1st Flight - 2 Astronauts do a Space Walk. 
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1 • .June 18, 1983 - "Challenger" - 2 nd Flight: 
A) Sally Ride: 

I. America's 1st Female Astronaut! 
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July 1983 
Leonard Lake & Charles N g 

1. Leonard Lake: 
A) Born - July 20, 1946 - San Francisco, California. 
B) Obsessed with pornography. 
C) Adolescent - Extorted sexual favors from his sister! 
D) Is fascinated with the idea of having "slaves." 
E) 1966 - Marines - Tour in Vietnam. 
F) 1971- Discharged. 
G) Moves to San Jose, California. 
H) Marries. 
I) People in the area know him as a "gun buff." 
J) Becomes a survivalists. 
K) Becomes a sexual freak. 
L) Likes to film bondage scenes. 
M)Likes to film scenes with female partners other than 

his wife. 
N) Wife divorces him. 
0) 1980 - Charged with grand theft of construction 

materials - Gets 1 year probation. 
P) August1981 - Second marriage. 
Q) Moves to Ukiah, California. 
R) Lives a "Renaissance" life. 
S) Meets Charles N g. 

2 .. Charles N g: 
A) 1961 - Born in Hong Kong. 
B) Very wealthy parents. 
C) Always in trouble. 
D) Expelled from school in Hong Kong. 
E) Expelled from a very expensive school in England. 
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F) California - Joins the Marines. 
G) Expert at martial arts. 
H) Loves to discuss violence. 
I) October 1979 - He and 2 accomplices steal 

$11,000.00 worth of automatic weapons from a . 
Marine arsenal in Hawaii. 

J) Arrested - Escapes - Deserts. 
K) 1981 - Answers an ad in a war gamer's magazine 

placed by Leonard Lake. 
L) The two men immediately "hit it off' - Become best 

of friends. 
M)The 2 start collecting automatic weapons from 

illegal sources. 

3. April 1982 - Federal agents raid the Ukiah ranch: 
A) Both are arrested for firearms violations. 
B) Lake is released on $6,000.00 bail: 

*** Goes into hiding. 
*** Uses many false names. 
*** Drifts around northern California. 
*** 2nd wife divorces him. 

C) Ngis denied bail because of his desertion from the 
Marines: 
*** Makes a deal with the military prosecutors. 
*** 3 years at Leavenworth. 
*** After 18 months he is paroled. 
*** Returns to California and teams up with Lake. 

4. Lake is living on 2 % acres of woodland near Wilseyville 
in Calaveras County: 

A) Builds a fortified bunker outside of his cabin. 
B) Stockpiles illegal weapons. 
C) Steals a large amount of video equipment. 
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5. Lake records all of his thoughts on video tape - Like a 
diary: 
A) Operation Miranda: Collecting sex slaves to serve his 

every need: 
*** This will take place after the "nuclear 

holocaust." 
B) Believes that God meant for women to cook, clean, 

and have sex with: 
***When "not in use" they should be locked up! 

6. July 1983 - Lake's brother, Donald, goes to visit him: 
·A) Never seen again!! 

7. June 2, 1985 - South San Francisco - Lumberyard -
Employees report an Asian man for w~lking out of the 
store with a $75.00 vice and not paying for it: 

A) Puts it in the trunk of a Honda car. 
B) Escapes on foot before he can be caught. 
C) Police arrive. 
D) At the wheel of the car is Leonard Lake. 
E) Produces a drivers license and says he is Robin 

Stapley - Doesn't even look like Stapley! 
F) In the trunk they find the vice and a .22 pistol 

equipped with a silencer. 
G) Booked on theft and weapons charges. 
H) For hours he evades questions. 
I) Asks for water - Swallows a cyanide capsule he has 

kept hidden in his belt buckle! 
J) Coma - Hospital- Lingers on life support for 4 

days. 
K) June 6, 1985 ~ Dies! 
L) Fingerprints - LEONARD LAKE! 

8. Check out "Robin Stapley" drivers license: 
A) Hasn't been seen for several weeks! 
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9. Owner of the Honda car is a 39 year old San Francisco 
car dealer, Paul Cosner: 

A) Hasn'tbeen seen since November of 1984. 
B) Has left home to sell a car to a "weird guy." 

10. Police go to Lake's property and home: 
A) Discover the cache of weapons. 
B) Discover torture devices. 
C) Discover. Lake's video diaries. 
D) Video equipment is traced to Harvey Dubs: 

*** San Francisco photographer. 
*** Missing with his wife Deborah and infant son, 

Sean, since July 25, 1984. 
E) Discover "horrible" home videos: 

*** Young women being stripped! 
*** Young women being threatened! 
*** Young women being raped! 
*** Young women being tortured! 
*** Some being mutilated! 
*** Show Lake and Ng as the "stars" killing the 

women!!! .......... SNUFF FILMS! 
F) Start identifying the women in the tapes: 

*** Deborah Dubs! 
*** Brenda O'Conner - Lake's neighbor - She, 

husband-Lonnie, infant son-Lonnie, and friend 
Robin Stapley, disappeared in May 1985. 

*** 18 year old, Kathleen Allen - Has met the 2 men 
thru her boyfriend 23 year old Mike Carroll 
who has served time in Leavenworth with Ng. 

G) Find still photos of Lake dressed in long witch-like 
robes: 
*** 21 different young captive women in various 

stages of undress! 
*** 6 are found to still be alive - Suspected the 
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other 15 are dead! 

11. June 8, 1985- Near the bunker - Find skeletal remains 
of 4 different people. 

12. June 13, 1985 -Find charred bone fragments and infant 
teeth! 

13. June 18, 1985 - Find the remains of 34 year old, drifter, 
Randy Jacobson: 
A) Last seen in October of 1984. 
B) Went to see Lake to sell him his van. 

14. June 26, 1985 - 3 more skeletal remains are found. 

15. The 2 men are linked to the disappearance of at least 25 
people! 

16. Among the dead are: 
A) Mike Carroll. 
B) 36 year old, disc jockey, Donald Giuletti of San 

Francisco - Has offered oral sex thru ads -
Answered by an Asian man: 
*** July 1984 - Ng shoots him to death! 

17. July 6, 1985 - Calgary, Alberta - Charles Ng is arrested 
for shoplifting food. 

18. July 9, 1985 - Remains of Robin Stapley and 1 other are 
found: 
A) At this point 12 bodies are accounted for. 

19. 1991 - Ng is extradited to the U.S. to stand trial: 
A) 7 years of appeals, postponements, etc. by Ng to 

avoid trial.\ 
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20. September 1, 1998 - Trial starts: 
A) Longest, most expensive criminal trial in California 

history. 
B) May 3, 1999 - Guilty! 
C) June 30, 1999 - Sentenced to death! 
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1. August 18, 1983 - Texas Coast - Hurricane 

"AI icia": 
A) 21 Killed. 

B) Over $1 Billion in damage! 

2. August 30th thru September 5, 1983 -

"Challenger" - 3 rd Flight: 
A) Lt. Colonel, Guion Bluford: 

I. America's 1st Black Astronaut. 
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1. September 1, 1983 - Russia - Big Mistake & 
Tragedy: 
A) Russian Fighter Jet. 
B) Mistake ••• Shoots down South Korean 

Passenger Airliner #007! 
C) All 269 on board are killed: 

I. 61 are Americans. 



( \, 1983 - October 
1. October 23, 1983 - Beirut, Lebanon - U.S.M.C. 

Headquarters: 

A) Truck - Suicide Driver - Explosives. 

B) Crashes thru the gate. 
C) Into the Marine Barracks ••• BOOM! 

D) 241 Marines are Killed - 71 Injured! 

E) February 1984 - Marines go home. 
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October 25, 1983 
The Invasion of Grenada 

1. October 23, 1983 - President Reagan gets a 
message: 
A) From the Organization of Eastern Caribbean 

States: 
I. requesting him to take action and restore 

order to Grenada: 
a. 18 mile long island at the 

southernmost tip of the Caribbean. 
B) Prime Minister Maurice Bishop has been 

overthrown by the Communist faction in the 
country: 
I. Revilt is led by Deputy Prime Minister, 

Bernard Couard. 
II. General Hudson Austin of the Army has 

taken control: 
a. They will murder Bishop and his entire 

cabinet! 
b. Austin has 600 Cuban Combat 

Engineers and a large supply of 
Russian weapons to help him! 

2. Reagan decides to invade: 
A) There are 1,100 Americans on Grenada and 

in danger!!! 
I. 550 of them are Medical Students. 



( 3. October 25, 1983 - 1,200 Marines and 900 
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Army Rangers invade on Carrier based 
Helicopters: 
A) Fighting. 
B) November 2, 1983 - Ends! 
C) 18 American Military Personnel are killed 

and 39 wounded. 
D) 18 Civilians of Grenada are killed. 
E) 18 Cubans are killed and 40 wounded: 

I. All of the Cubans, dead and wounded, are 
returned to Cuba. 
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1983 - November 
1. November 2, 1983 - President, Ronald Reagan: 

A) Signs bill: 

I. 3 rd Monday - January - National Holiday: 
(1) Dr. Martin Luther King Jr. Day. 

B) Reagan has NOT supported the idea! 


